E-4:0 3

PPS International (Holdings) Limited
ERERERAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RFESHSEMAZNERRR)
(Stock Code f&f7 X5 : 8201)

e
\,lil

L/

kil

iy

| _—

' ~

Annual
Report

2022 #




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E & & 07

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the provision of
cleaning and related services for (i) public area and office cleaning
services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings and their tenants, residential complexes, shopping
arcades, hotels and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight
kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external
wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stonefloor maintenance and
restoration services; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste
management and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection,
transportation and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and
plastic waste collected during our operations; (vii) housekeeping services
where we provide housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels
and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and confidential waste destruction
for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; (x) cleaning and
waste management solution for renovated apartment; and (xi) airline
catering support services.

Money Lending Business
The Group conducts its money lending business in Hong Kong under the
money lenders licences and in the PRC.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group invested in financial assets classified as the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which composed of only the shares of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Compared to the revenue of approximately HK$306.9 million for the
year ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by approximately HK$30
million to approximately HK$336.9 million for the year ended 30 June
2022.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different
sectors which reflect the target clients of our environmental and cleaning
services in Hong Kong:

Year ended
30 June 2022
BE-ZE-—F
NRA=THLEE

HK$’000
FET
Commercial EES 136,769
Residential x= 131,329
Hospitality iy 15,252
Transportation Bty 34,281
Others Hith 19,284

336,915

Most commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services at commercial buildings where customers traditionally demand a
higher service quality and are also willing to pay a premium price. Aimost
all of the commercial contracts enable the Group to provide additional
services for the tenants in the tenanted area of the buildings with
contracts on a regular, ad-hoc or one-off basis which further enhance our
revenue stream. The Group succeeded in renewing and securing several
new service contracts in the commercial sector during the year which
contributed additional significant amount of revenue for the year.

The Group has allocated more resources to gain services contracts from
the residential during the year. The Group succeeded in securing several
new significant service contracts for premium private housing estates
which contributed additional significant amount of revenue for the year.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Year ended
30 June 2021
HE-_T-—F
ANA=ZTBHLEFE
% HK$'000 %
FAET
128,457 41.9
110,950 36.2
12,903 4.2
37,297 121
17,253 5.6
306,860 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E & & 07

During the year, the businesses of hospitality in Hong Kong recovered
slightly as the spreading of COVID-19 was relatively relieved. Our
customers under the hospitality sector have been requesting the
Group to increase our service volume. As a result, the revenue from
the hospitality sector significantly increased for the year. However, the
businesses of hospitality in Hong Kong still have been severely affected
by the spreading of COVID-19 and are not expected to be significantly
improved in the coming fiscal year.

During the year, the Group was providing hygiene and related services
to several respectable transportation operators in Hong Kong. However,
the price and service volume from these transportation of which the
businesses have been severely affected by the worldwide spreading of
CQOVID-19 have been significantly declining or suspended. Therefore, the
revenue from the transportation sector decreased for the year.

Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and service price is
reviewable on an annual basis.

Results

During the year, the Group was granted by the Government a one-off
subsidy amounting to approximately HK$1.6 million (2021: approximately
HK$24.5 million) under the ESS for part of the monthly salaries of our
employees under the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong
which was included in the “Other income”.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the environmental and cleaning
business in Hong Kong achieved a net profit of HK$8.3 million (excluding
the one-off subsidy from the ESS) as compared to the net profit of
HK$3.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2021. The increase is mainly
due to (i) higher profit margin contributed from new services contracts
in the residential sector; and (ii) decreasing operating costs after
implementation of more efficient working flows and stringent cost control
procedures.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shanghai, the PRC

In the first half of 2022, the city-wide lockdown of Shanghai that lasted
for more than two months has greatly impacted nearly all sector of
Shanghai’s businesses. Some of our customers in Shanghai permanently
closed their businesses, chose to engage our competitors offering lower
service fees or requested to reduce our services volume and service fees.
In addition, low-skilled labor supply in Shanghai is becoming extremely
intensified as low-skilled labors are starting to move to other cities in
the PRC in view of the negative prospect and severe downturn of the
economy in Shanghai after the city-wide lockdown.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

During the year, the Shanghai Operations recorded a decrease in the
revenue by approximately HK$12.3 million to approximately HK$23.5
million for the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: approximately HK$35.8
million). And the net profit from the Shanghai Operations decreased by
approximately HK$2.8 million to approximately HK$0.5 million for the
year ended 30 June 2022 as compared to the net profit of approximately
HK$3.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2021. The significant
downturn of the financial performance of the Shanghai Operations is
mainly due to (i) lost of several service contracts due to fierce competition
in pricing; (ii) decline in the prices and services volume from existing
customers of which the businesses have been severely affected by the
city-wide lockdown of Shanghai; and (i) continuing increasing manpower
services costs due to intense labor supply.

Money Lending Business

During the year, the Group continued to focus on conducting its money
lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals and corporations, in Hong Kong and the
PRC. A cautious and prudent approach is the key direction of our money
lending strategies that only borrowers with sound financial abilities would
be considered and approved by the Group. The Company had currently
adopted the credit risk assessment for the potential customers by taking
the following steps:

(i)  The Group will conduct the “know-your-client” procedure, which
consists of (i) background check; (ii) obtaining and review of
identification documents (such as identity card, business registration
and/or the certificate of incorporation, public searches).

(i) The Group will conduct an anti-money laundering risk assessment
based on the information obtained under the point (i) above and
the recommended anti-money laundering policies published by the
government bureaus.

(iiy  The Group will then assess the creditworthiness of the customers by
taking into account the customer’s occupation, financial condition,
asset portfolio and credit history.

(@) For personal customers, the Group will assess their financial
capabilities by reviewing their asset portfolio (such as
securities investment and/or properties owned) as well as their
background and public reputation (such as position in well-
known organization).

(b) For corporate customers, the Group will assess their financial
capabilities by reviewing their financial statements, business
potential (such as material operating contracts) and/or asset
portfolio (such as securities investment and/or properties
owned).

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

FER - FBERHNEE_Z-__FA=1H
1FF 8215 Wz R 4 £912,300,00078 TT & 49
23,500,000/ 7T (=& = — 4 : #935,800,000
BIL) o EEEBMNANAEE_T - —F
N A=+ B 1k E 493,300,000 7T R 4 49
2,800,000 TEHE T -__F,A=1H
1EFE#9500,00058 7T » BB EBENBF KBRS
BETENDFEZARNEREFHNETLE
ETRBEEH  (\RERFHNERERBEET
B ZERFPMESADSEMHEMT K
EEE RS T HEZREHA N RBEMKA

SEIL -

BEZES

FA - ARBEETINELEMERS - [
FERFENEF (BREARATDREHRALR
AREEARER - HMANRERBEIRRAE
Eet AREESZERIERS RIFRS
BENHERA - ARFBAIERBUA TR
HEEEPETEERRE

) ZAEESHRENTRENERPIEF B
WE=HE : ((ESRBESMHERAXMF
(Pl FHE - BEBLER S ARG

HE - RFERR) -

(iy ZANEEBIRE EXE)RFTESNER KX
B BR P93 0 25 SO BRI R 1T Rk
AR o

(i) AEBEEEBERESOBE  BER
R ARMA RIEEEHE  LFEESD
58 -

@ BMEAFFPME  AKEMEBEL
HEEAS (PINESFRE R,
BRENYE)AREESROAREE
(VAR R0 2 AR () SRR EL B 75

2k
BE °©

b HMEEEPME  AKEMEEES
HM G mE - E5E N (PIInERE
LEK R/ HEERE (PINEHER
BN RPTHER M) R EY
THREN -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E & & 07

(c) The Group will also consider the financial capabilities of the
guarantor, if any.

(d) For mortgage loan customers, the Group will principally assess
the market value of the mortgaged properties, any existing
mortgages/charges on the mortgaged properties.

After completion of the “know-your-client” procedure and credit risk
assessment, the loan application will be reported to the management of
the Company for approval. After the obtaining of the aforesaid approval,
the relevant loan documents will be executed.

For post-loan monitoring, the Group will closely monitor payment of the
monthly interests on the scheduled dates and repayment of the loan
principal amount on maturity dates. In general, the Group will arrange call
with the existing borrowers regulary to understand if there is any material
deterioration in the client’s financial capabilities. Any delay in payments
will be immediately reported to the management of the Company, which
will determine what action should be taken.

In the event that there is delay in payment of interests or loan principal,
the Group will contact the borrowers and issue the demand letters to the
borrowers immediately. The management of the Group will discuss in
details with the borrowers for the reasons of late payment and plans for
repayment. After considering all circumstances available to the Group,
with limitation to reasons for late repayment, recent financial capabilities
of the borrowers, the market conditions, the attitudes of the borrowers,
subsequent repayments made by the borrowers, the management of
the Company will determine whether it constitute a delinquent loan
and whether the Group should take further legal actions against the
borrowers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

The Group’s average gross loan balance decreased from approximately — 1 NERFT#H, - NEBHFHER LS AR
HK$1283.4 million as at 30 June 2021 to approximately HK$104.2 milion =% = —4 75 A =+ H #7123,400,0007% TR
as at 30 June 2022 as set out in the below table. The decrease is mainly 4% —ZF — — 475 A =+ H#7104,200,000/8
due to repayments of the loans from some borrowers in Hong Kong while 7t A T T ERRE B L ERABEE

no new loans were granted by the Group during the year. Mo MAEBERFERWERHITER
2022 2021
“BoCE “Eo-
Gross Net Gross Net
Interest  outstanding ECL outstanding Interest  outstanding ECL  outstanding
rates range balances  allowance balance  ratesrange balances  allowance balance
AEEGHR  BEREE N1 AEEER  EHEE RER
e B FRER  EBRRE  TIXEE fE  BRER  KBEE
% HK'000 HK’000 HK'000 % HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TEn Thx TEn T T TH#L
In Hong Kong: RER:
Secured by mortgage loan BEBEREEA 114% 11.4%to 14% 11,500 (57) 11,443
NA%RE14%
Personal/corporation quarantees  fAA /R AERER 18% to 22% (46,086) 18% 0 22% 75,000 (44,172 30,837
loans 18%%22% 18%222%
Unsecured loans BERER - 14% 11,141 (400) 10,741
(46,086) 97,650 (44,629) 53,021
In the PRC: PR
Personalicorporation quarantees A/ 2 A ERER 18% 12,019 (28) 11,991
loans
Unsecured loans BERET 6% to 7% (120) 6% to 18% 13,749 (32) 13717
6%Z7% 6%Z18%
22,652 (120) 25,768 (60) 25,708
Total a5 104,161 (46,206) 123418 (44,689) 78,729
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm Kk o

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers constituted balance
47.5% and 97.6% (2021: 35.1% and 84.1%) of the Group’s net loans
receivables respectively as at 30 June 2022 as set out below:

RZZ-_—FXA=Z+H IEAERALR
AERAZERD BIERASLEERKEFF5E
BTN 475% RO7.6% (=T~ —4 : 351% %
84.1%) » #HIWT :

As at 30 June
RAB=1+H
2022 2021
—E-F B
Net Net
outstanding Outstanding
balances % to total balances % to total
REE 1H#%E RIEE gt
HEEE pA=L 4 ERFE ZEDL
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Borrower A BRAA 27,636 35.1%
Borrower B B AB 11,991 15.2%
Borrower C BEFAC 6,500 8.3%
Borrower D* fERAD* 11,114 14.1%
Borrower E fBFRAE 8,993 11.4%
Borrower F ERAF - 0.0%
66,234 84.1%

*

This borrower fully repaid the loan during the year.

# This borrower was not one of the top 5 borrowers as at 30 June 2021.

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has been assessed
individually based on their probability of default and exposure of default
with reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by current
and forward-looking factors. Further details on the Group’s expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on the loan receivables are set out in note 28(a)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements. The economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC have been challenging for all businesses with the prolonged
Sino-US trade tensions and the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Amid
such negative factors, some of our borrowers under the money lending
business have been severely affected and are in financial difficulties, and
therefore have defaulted on repayment of their loans and/or interests on
schedules. Therefore, the Group specifically recognized full impairment
loss on these past due on these past due loan receivables (i.e. loan
receivables under the stage 3) as at 30 June 2021. Nevertheless,
the Group has been taking actions, including but not limited to legal
proceedings against these borrowers, to recover the loan principals,
interests and all other related recovery costs incurred.

* RERAERFRBREEER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &8 Ei1#H % o4

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as
follows:

ERNFEREEFEEREEBOMWT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FE—EER HERER =R st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAET
At 1 July 2020 RZZE-FTF+HA—H 390 35,645 - 36,035
New originated MEE 57 - - 57
Impairment loss EERRERE
recognised 52 - - 52
Repaid during the year FREE (11) - - (11)
Transfer BER - (35,645) 35,645 -
Impact on year ended A RS- FE ER 2 85 8
ECLs of exposures FRIEHEEEFIE
transferred between [R5
stages during the year - - 8,556 8,556
At 30 June 2021 and E/Q\—v— FRA=1H
1 July 2021 r—f-—FtH—H 488 - 44,201 44,689
Impairment loss EHERREEIE
recognised 1,643 - - 1,643
Repaid during the year FR{EE (26) - - (26)
At 30 June 2022 RZZEZZ_FA=+H 2,005 - 44,201 46,206

The interest income and operating profit (excluding the ECL allowance)
from the money lending business for the year ended 30 June 2022
amounted to approximately HK$9.9 million and approximately
HK$5.2 million respectively (2021: approximately HK$12.1 million and
approximately HK$6.4 million). The decline is mainly due to the decrease
in the average loans balance granted by the Group throughout the year
ended 30 June 2022 and the decrease in the interest rates upon renewal
of some loans during the year.

Properties in Hong Kong

As at 30 June 2022, the market prices and sentiment of the commercial
properties in Hong Kong has been gradually and slightly rebounding
since early 2022. As a result, a revaluation gain of approximately HK$5.1
million (2021: revaluation gain of approximately HK$3.3 million) on the
Group’s commercial properties is recorded based on the independent
valuation as at 30 June 2022.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group’s investment strategy is to review the investment portfolio
continuously and make appropriate adjustments (by acquisition or
disposal) according to the market situation, with an aim to generate
reasonable returns. During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
recorded net unrealised fair value loss amounting to approximately
HK$9,000 (2021: HKS$NIl) and net realised gain on disposals amounting
to approximately HK$30,000 (2021: net realised loss of approximately
HK$801,000) from the investments in the financial assets.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E & & 07

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had investments in financial assets R Z-_ZT-__FXA=+H  AEBEHY
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of 34,0008 c(ZZ=-—F<xA=+H : T&T)
approximately HK$34,000 (30 June 2021: HK$NIl) which composed of 74 BEEREENIE AR AT ETAEBREN
only the shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange as set out & RIEE @ EEBERBH EHHRAR 2K

below: PEFIAT -
Percentage
of Percentage
shareholding to
in the gross assets
Name of stock Number of investee  Investment Market value
(Stock code) Principal business shares held company cost value of the Group
RERERT EEEBEEE
40 58 (R LR TEEK FEROBE ZREBIL RERAE mE #BEZEIH
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Alibaba Group Holding Limited  Internet and direct 300 <0.001% 42,330 33,570 0.012%
(9988) marketing retail
MECEEEEERERAR HEHRAREHTE
(9988)

Information on the performance of the Group’s financial assets at far HE_ZT-__FXA=+HI-FE  AEEK
value through profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2022 is set A FEABRZ CRIBE 2RI\ 2 EEH5|

out as below: T
Unrealised
fair value loss on  Realised gain/(loss)
Name of stock (Stock code) financial assets on disposals
SRBEERER ERRHE
IR &5 (R 1K) AR EBE W (E518)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Meituan (3690) - 42,060
FH1(3690)
Haidilao International Holding Limited (6862) - (17,500)
YBIR E R TR A PR A 7)(6862)
Alibaba Group Holding Limited (9988) (8,760) (8,670)
Fr] 2 B B S E3E AR B BR 22 71(9988)
Jiumaojiu International Holdings Limited (9922) - (8,840)
NENEFRZRER A F)(©9922)
Tencent Holdings Limited (700) = 22,530

B EIE AR A IR A B1(700)
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OUTLOOK
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Labor market competition in Hong Kong has intensified with the
implementation of The Statutory Minimum Wage (the “SMW?”) which is set
to be reviewed in coming two years. The Group is also facing higher labor
turnover rate in the environmental and cleaning services industry as more
labor tend to work in other less laborious industries such as the security
guard service industry under the same SMW rate. To offset the increase
in labor costs, the Group is striving to transfer most of the increased
labor costs to our customers and implement more efficient working flows
and stringent cost control procedures. The Group is closely monitoring
the labor turnover rate and regularly reviews our remuneration package
in order to maintain sufficient labor force and cope with the changing
environment. We would continue to enhance the quality of services by
providing training to our front line staff.

The economy in Hong Kong has been challenging and in extreme difficult
for the businesses in the transportation and the hotel sectors as well as
the commercial sector with the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Our
customers from these sectors have been reducing their service requests
and asking for the prices reduction. We believe that both of our service
income and profit margin from these sectors must remain low. To mitigate
such downturn effect, we would strengthen our marketing effort in hope
to expand our market shares in the commercial and the residential
sectors and continue to consolidate our resources to focus on high value
customers to bring in additional revenue by cross-selling other cleaning
and waste management services to our existing customers. We believe
this strategy may not only improve our revenue per customer but also
increase our profit margin as we could leverage our existing manpower
to perform services at location where we already have presence. We
would explore other new environmental and cleaning services to expand
our service scope to enable customers to use the Group as a one-stop
cleaning contractor. We would continue to streamline our operations in
order to simplify and improve our operation efficiency. We believe that our
success in serving different sectors will further build up the confidence for
new clients to select our cleaning services in the coming future.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in the PRC

The Shanghai Operations are not expected to be significantly improved
in the coming fiscal year with the above-mentioned negative factors
affecting nearly all sector of businesses in Shanghai. However, the
management of the Shanghai Operations has refined its marketing
strategies in order to attract more new customers to utilize our cleaning
services and implemented more efficient working flows and stringent cost
control procedures to reduce all unnecessary expenditures.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E & & 07

Money Lending Business

With the increasing threat of a downturn of the economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC as a result of the above-mentioned negative factors, the
Group continues its effort in strengthening its risk management policy
and streamlining our existing loan portfolio mix with an aim to reduce our
exposure on high risk loans. A cautious and prudent approach is the key
direction of our money lending strategies that only borrowers with sound
financial abilities would be considered and approved by the Group in the
future.

Investments in Financial Assets

A cautious and prudent approach is continued to be the key direction
of our investment strategies that only companies listed on the Stock
Exchange with valuable prospects would be considered and invested by
the Group in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group reported a total revenue of
approximately HK$370.3 million (2021: approximately HK$354.8 million),
representing an increase of approximately 4.4%. The increase is mainly
due to the net effect of (i) increase in the revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services business in Hong Kong by approximately
HK$30.0 million to approximately HK$336.9 million for the year ended
30 June 2022 (2021: approximately HK$306.9 million) as a result of
several service contracts in the commercial and the residential sectors
awarded by the Group; (i) decrease in the contribution of the revenue of
approximately HK$12.3 million from the Shanghai Operations as several
cleaning service contracts were lost during the year; and (iii) decrease
in the interest income of approximately HK$2.2 million from the money
lending business after decline in the average loans balances granted by
the Group during the year.

BEREH

R BT MEAZEREL &P BEEEREN
BEBRBEA  AEBEES HMBERRE
BRREMEERBEETRES  UREsRRE
FH R - IR BUEREEH) E BIER AR
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EEERNERRE R FERNERRT
RBE AEERARESERIREBEH
HIBEZZFT LT A A] o

g e
Wz

HEZZS-_FXA=+tHILFE  ~EBEKR
248 U0 25 #49370,300,00008 L ( Z B = — 4 -
#7354,800,000/8 L) * 3 hN474.4% © 235N
FERRN)BEE_E-_—_FA=FTHLHF
B AEBRGETEHEERTEIBRBEEL
LEHEBHIRE KB Z R EB /UKL 14
30,000,000 7T & #J336,900,00078 7T ( ==
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &8 Ei1#H % o4

Other Income, Other Gains and Other Losses and
Impairment

Other income, other gains and other losses and impairment of the Group
mainly consisted of (i) the revaluation gain of approximately HK$5.1
million (2021: approximately HK$3.3 million) on the Group’s commercial
properties based on the independent valuation; (i) the Impairment Loss
of approximately HK$1.5 million (2021: impairment loss of approximately
HK$9.1 million) made for the loans and interests receivables under
the Group’s money leading business; (iii) the net realized gain of
approximately HK$0.03 million (2021: net realized loss of approximately
HK$0.8 million) on the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
(iv) impairment loss of approximately HK$2.9 million (2021: HKS$Nil) on
the goodwill from the CGU of the environmental and cleaning business in
the PRC; and (v) one-off subsidies of approximately HK$1.6 million (2021:
approximately HK$24.5 million) from the ESS.

Selling, Marketing Expenses and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s selling, marketing and administrative expenses decreased
by approximately HK$3.0 million to approximately HK$24.2 million
(2021: approximately HK$27.2 million) for year ended 30 June 2022.
The decrease was mainly due to decrease in the selling, marketing and
administrative expenses, including but not limited to, rental expenses,
entertainment expenses, advertising and promotion expenses, travelling
expenses and general office expenses, of the Group’s headquarters.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2022.

DISCLOSURE OF ADVANCE TO ENTITIES UNDER
RULE 17.22 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Included in the Group’s loans receivables with aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$104.2 million as at 30 June 2022 are the
loans with aggregate principal amount of HK$28.0 million granted to the
below independent third party under the ordinary course of the Group’s
money lending services which exceed 8% of the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing Rules as at 30 June 2022.

16 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

HaWA - Halas Rk 2 aEiE RmE

REBEEABRA - HAb e & H Ao E51E ROBE
I%@%ﬁ('wﬁiﬁﬁjmﬁ REBEEY £
B EHINZE#5,100,0008 T(ZE - —F : 49
s,soo,ooo,%m) CVREAEEREERIE T
FEUE 2R % F B AR AR E B 18 491,500,000/
TT(ZZE=—F : BEEE49,100,000%7T)
(iE R FEFAEBZ EMEE B #IR S
SFREAI30,0008 L (- —F : B2 BEIE
SHEB49800,0008 7T ) ¢ (V)P BIIRIE B R ER
IR B A B U MY B R R (B 5 18 492,900,000
75<_T* FTBIT) 0 RWIRBLEETEIR
XM AR 91,600,000 T (ZFE = —4F : 49
24,500,000,571)

HE - EHAXRITEMAX

%zif7ff¢/\ﬂ THIEFE - AEEH

- R TR SR #93,000,00078 TTE LY
24 200,000/ 7t (=& = — 4 : £927,200,000
BIL) c RMAOEERRAERMEBZIHE - &
HETEEY (2EETENAERS « BilE:
X EEREHER -  ZREAE—MBIA
BRA)RD o

IRE

EEelTEEsEE_
FREIRMERRE -

REGEM EHRAE17.22% K E @
E%ﬁzﬂ

AREBR _ZE-__FRA=1THALEE
#9104,200,000 8 THEKERBER=-Z
ZZERNAZHEBRTALEERERSE —R
BIEFATEYE = BAGEM ETRAIE
19.07()VEFTRENEELL R8N M AL B A
28,000,000/ ST E R »

T FRA=THIE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E & & 07

The details of such loans are disclosed under Rule 17.22 of the GEM B EZR

R IR IEGEM E TR RIS 17,2216

Listing Rules as below: WERWNT -
Gross amount of
Loan the loan as at
Name of amount 30June  Interest rate
Date of announcements the borrower granted 2022 perannum  Guarantees and security Repayment terms
RZB-=f
AR=TH
AERE EBRAZE/ e RUEREH LG FRE  ERRER BHER
HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL
8 November 2017, Asian Champion Industrial 30,000 28,000 22%  Personal quarantees executed by the  The Borrower shall pay
8 November 2018 and Limited below independent third parties: interest accrued on the loan
31 May 2019 on amonthly basis and shall
- Mr. Liao Libo, who owns repay the total outstanding
40% equity interest of Asian principal amount of the Loan
Champion Industrial Limited; and  together with any outstanding
interest accrued thereon on 7
- Mr.Cheung Wing Chuen,who  November 2022.
owns 60% equity interest of Asian
Champion Industrial Limited
Corporate guarantee executed by %
BEERIMEERRAR, whichis
owned as to 80% by Mr. Liao Libo
BHE-ANR BEERARAT 30,000 28,000 2% BATBUESHETNEARR: ERAREARNERNES
2 \Et-ANBR HERER-Z_—F1- H
ZE-NFRAZT-H - FAEGEXARAAM%NE tREEENOKERASH
WBLRES : R BEAEAAERENFIE -
- BARTERARAFWRE
by lbit2
BB A FAOWERNIAET
TENBERRAIRTHRARR
Capital Structure and Fund Raising Activities BEXEBREEED
The shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of the Stock AR RIEMD B ZFTGEM LT o ANA BIRRAE
Exchange. The Company’s share capital comprises only ordinary shares. BIEL AR -
Liquidity and Financial Resources REBESRUKER
During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group had financed its HEZZ-__FSA=THIFE  A&EHE
operations and capital requirements through operating cash flows. BEBEReRERNEERESTRK
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of WRZ-Z - —FXA=+H ALERENRSE
approximately HK$74.5 million (2021: approximately HK$72.5 million). S {E¥#)/A74,500,0008 L ( ZF = —F : 4
The increase is mainly due to net cash inflows from the Group’s operating 72,500,000 7C) « BRI EZ RN AL
activities. B ETEHEARNRS AT °
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As at 30 June 2022, the Group had net current assets of approximately W -_Z - —FXA=+H AEEBRHEE

HK$147.2 million (2021: approximately HK$138.3 million) and current  JF{E %) A147,200,000/8 L (ZE=ZZF : 4
ratio of approximately 2.9 times (2021: approximately 2.5 times) which 138,300,000/ 7T ) * RE L EKH A2 (ZF
remain strong and healthy. % 492.5(5) - DERNESH RIBEEKTF o

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio. This AEBAEEBGBELL REILHER o LRy
ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings (including lease 1kt £ E A (BIEHEAE) B ARAR 25
liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio at the end of the &T& - Rk RN EEBBLENOT ¢
reporting period was as follows:

2022 2021

—EC-CHF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Bank loans RITER 22,397

Unlisted corporate bond ELEMARIES 9,938

Lease liabilities HEAE 2,719

Total interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE®E 35,054
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling IR 42 % (B AR SR A )

interests) 213,338 202,740

Gearing ratio BEAGBEE 10.98% 17.3%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any 2N 7] 3k E (B /& & FIBE A 52 1 A (AT S 30
externally imposed capital requirements. MEINZ EAFRTE °

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy EFERA » N&E B ENEE IR @ Bk
financial position and has sufficient resources to support its operations . * B A 7 8 EIRAE & EFTH Ko 2 A

and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures and expansions. FERZERREZ RIETR -
Charges on the Group’s Assets EEENEEER

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had bank deposits of approximately R=—T=——F/XA=+H  AKERTERLD
HK$0.6 million (2021: approximately HK$1.7 milion) pledged to banks ~ 600,000/#7T( =% = —4 : #91,700,000/& 7T.)
as security for bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued and DM TIRTT - EREELBORE 2 R1THE
banking facilities granted to the Group. REFETEEERITRE MR -

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had properties with carrying values of MR-ZE-—FRNA=1TH AKEREELLS
approximately HK$58.3 million (2021: approximately HK$54.5 million) 58,300,000/ 7T ( — & — — % : £954,500,000
charged to the bank as security for the bank loans, bankers’ guarantees 8 70) I X 2 T R1T - ER|ITER
on performance bonds issued and banking facilities granted to the &% HEKIRE Z RITEAELE T AEERTT

Group. BhE AR o
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period, major portion of the Group’s operations are located
mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk due to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against
HK$ arising from the our environmental and cleaning services business
and money lending business in the PRC. The results of our operations
in the PRC are translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions while their
financial items are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period, the resulted exchange differences are
recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve of the Company and will be reclassified
to profit or loss until the disposal of interests in such operations.
Fluctuation of RMB against HK$ is moderate to the Group during the
period. The Group will review and monitor its currency exposure from
time to time, and when appropriate hedge its currency risk.

Information on Employees

The Group had 1,189 employees (2021: 1,159) as at the end of the Year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and training for human
resources upskilling. Total staff costs and related expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) incurred by the Group were approximately
HK$204.1 million (2021: approximately HK$199.9 million) for the year
ended 30 June 2022.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

There were neither significant investments held by the Group as at 30
June 2022 nor material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries made by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2022.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 30 June 2022, our capital expenditures mainly
included acquisitions of plant and equipment amounting to approximately
HK$3.0 million. These capital expenditures were funded by funds
generated from our operating activities.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Performance bond

Guarantees on performance bonds in
respect of environmental and cleaning
service contracts

REERFELR

RERFELBERRIGEEKELD

RABE
(a) EHRE
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
N-—ZE—— WZE——
~A=1+H ~NHA=1+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
13,644

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental and cleaning
service contracts of the Group’s environmental and cleaning
services business in Hong Kong.

As at 30 June 2022, the restricted bank fixed deposits of
approximately HK$0.6 million (2021: approximately HK$1.7 million),
the properties with carrying values of approximately HK$53.7 million
(2021: HK$49.9 million) and the corporate guarantee from the
Company and a subsidiary of the Group were pledged to banks as
security for such bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bonds is based on the service
period and the contract terms as specified in these environmental
and cleaning service contracts. The performance bonds may be
claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group fail to meet
the standards as specified in these environmental and cleaning
service contracts.

Litigations — Employees personal injuries

During the year, the Group may from time to time be involved in
litigations concerning personal injuries by its employees or third
party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements and
covered by insurance protection.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT E£F 5 S 5B ABEE

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently consists of five
Directors comprising two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), aged 37, was appointed as executive
Director on 28 October 2016, the chief executive officer of the Company
on 28 November 2017 and the chairman of the Board on 2 July 2019.
He served as non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (P EI#T6EJRE) N EE B R A A)) (now known as Lamtex
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1041) from 14 March 2016 to 30 August 2016.
He is currently the chairman of FRFE= 2 E % FR A 7] (Shaanxi Hengze
Industrial Corporation Limited*), which is principally engaged in investment
in and development of energy, mining, environmental-preservation, real
estate, and tourism businesses. Furthermore, he is a supervisor of SE
M mELZ MR A R & T 2 A (Uaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability
Company*), a company which China National Petroleum Corporation
(P E AR RAREER A has indirect interest in it, which principally
engaged in (i) construction and re-construction of city gas infrastructures;
(i) design and engineering of expansion work and related installation and
development management; (iii) transportation, sale, provision of after
sale service, research and development of technologies and provision of
consultancy service in relation to city gas; (iv) construction and operation
of various types of gas station; (v) sale of petroleum and natural gas
related equipment; and (vi) construction, operation management of
compressed natural gas projects. Both Mr. Yu and £ B 22 75 1 BHZ K
RAREHERF (Ulaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*) have
been members of the China Gas Association (F Bl A i &).

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 July 2018. He graduated from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and marketing executive
of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a main operating
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the provision of environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong. He was promoted to the chief
executive officer of PPS in February 2018 and is primarily responsible for
our group’s environmental and cleaning services business including the
recruitment of personnel, approval of budgets, quality control of cleaning
projects, procurement of cleaning materials and equipment, workplace
safety and site supervision.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 39, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company and a Chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 25 April 2016 and 31
July 2018 respectively. He received his degree of Master of Laws in
commercial and corporate law from King’s College London, United
Kingdom in November 2006 and his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
and degree of Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong Kong in
July 2005 and November 2004 respectively. He was admitted to practise
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2008. He is practising in Hong
Kong and is currently an associate of a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of Hao Bai
International (Cayman) Limited (Stock code: 8431), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, until his resignation in 16 May 2018.

Mr. Meng Enhai (“Mr. Meng”), aged 36, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of Company on 31 July 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in laws from Xian University of Technology (FA% 3 T K2 in July 2010.
He joined Bk 78 5k %= 1 12 A = 5 AT (ShanXi Yong Jia Xin Law Office®)
(“Yong Jia Xin Law Office”) in 2010 and serves, at present, as a senior
practicing lawyer and a partner of Yong Jia Xin Law Office for providing
legal services to listed companies in the PRC. He was once the author of
several books relating to the commerce law proceedings and the stock
listing in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Cui (“Mr. Wang”), aged 38, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and a remuneration committee of
the Company on May 2020. He obtained a bachelor degree in Economics
from The University of Warwick of in July 2005. He joined Rolls-Royce
plc in United Kingdom in September 2005 and had roles as Market
Analyst for Asia and Middle East regions, Sales Manager for America
and Europe regions and Sales Director for Global and Vice President for
Greater China customer business. He was transferred to Rolls-Royce
China Holdings Limited in Beijing in May 2016 and now serves as Senior
Vice President of the Civil Aerospare division of Rolls-Royce China
Holdings Limited to oversee its sales, marketing, commercial, account
management, field support, service delivery and engineering sections in
Greater China. He was awarded the “2015 Young Exporter of the Year”
by the British Exporters Association in recognition to his contribution to
the British export industry.

*

For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises our executive Directors and our
company secretary.

Mr. Chan Woon Wing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 3 October 2016. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. Prior to joining
the Group in 2014, Mr. Chan had served at the audit department of an
international audit firm for six years. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2014
and is mainly responsible for overseeing the company secretary work of
the Company now.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (i) the provision of environmental and cleaning services;
and (ii) the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong and PRC.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from pages 94 to 95 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular shown in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 5 to 20 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some of which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates. The Directors have established a policy to
ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.
The Group has identified the following key risks that are considered to
be significant to the Group, which may adversely and/or materially affect
the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses and to
the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited
to:

Environmental and Cleaning Services
Customers

(i) A majority of the service contracts have fixed service terms that
range from one to three years and many of them are granted to
the Group by way of tendering. There is no assurance of the grant
of new contracts nor renewal of the existing contracts and these
uncertainties may have negative impact on the financial results of
the Group. Moreover, in the competitive tendering process, the
Group may have to lower the service charges in the bids in order
to increase the competitiveness of the tenders and the Group
may encounter great pressure on the profit margins if the Group is
unable to reduce the costs accordingly. In such event, the financial
results and profitability would be materially and adversely affected.

(i) Most of the service contracts of the Group are fixed-price contracts,
under which the Group provides the cleaning and related services
at a pre-determined price. If the Group fails to accurately estimate
the costs or fail to execute fixed-price contracts within the cost
estimates, the results of operation would be adversely affected. As
a result, the Group may not be able to adjust the service fees nor
recover any cost overruns, which may in turn adversely affect the
reputation, financial conditions, profitability or liquidity.
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(i)  The aggregate revenue generated from the five largest customers
of the environmental and cleaning services represented nearly
32.6% of the total revenue of the environmental and cleaning
services for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Group does not
enter into long-term service contracts with any of these customers,
which the Directors believe is in line with the market practice of the
environmental services industry in Hong Kong. These customers
may terminate their business relationships with the Group upon
expiry of the service contracts. If any of the key customers, including
these five largest customers, substantially reduces the volume
and/or value of services procured from the Group or terminates its
business relationship with the Group, there is no assurance that
the Group would be able to find substitute customers or to secure
comparable contracts to replace any such loss of revenue. If any
of the above happens, the business and performance would be
materially adversely affected.

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation
of the Group. We places great emphasis on quality control. We have
obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and the Qualification Level Certificate
of China Cleaning Industry — National 1st Level Qualification, and are
committed to delivering professional services and achieving customer
satisfaction. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments
and communicate with our clients before commencing services. We have
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality Management
Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and objectives. During
the performance of our services, our employees will carry out regular
check on the service quality, including services delivered by the Group’s
own employees and third-party service providers, and record occasions
of substandard performance and any follow-up actions taken.

Budgeting is the key factor of our business operations. To formulate the
reasonable and competitive pricing, we carefully prepare, review and
discuss, among the management and operation teams, the details of
budget for every service contract based on our 20 years more experience
in the environmental and cleaning industry and latest market information.
During the performance of our services, any deviations from the budgets
are seriously investigated and monitored for, if any, remedy actions and
recorded for our reference in coming budgeting.

Service mix, service quality and competitive pricing, which are regarded as
key to good relationship with our customers, are continuously reviewed
with the aim to cater for our customers’ fast-changing needs and
enhance their satisfactions and business relationship with the Group.
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Employees

U

(i)

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
the insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against
certain risk. Employees who suffer from bodlily injuries or death as
a result of accidents or diseases occurred during the course of
their employment are entitled to claim damages and compensation
against the Group under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as under the common law. The Group has taken out
insurance policies to cover these potential claims, including
employees’ compensation insurance and public liability insurance.
However, the outcome of any claim is subject to the relevant parties’
negotiation or the decision of the court or the relevant arbitration
authorities, and the result of any of the outstanding claims may
be unfavourable to the Group. As a result, the Group may have to
pay out of the own resources for any uninsured financial or other
losses, damages and liabilities and litigation that could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial conditions and results of
operations.

The Group has experienced high turnover rate of the operation
team and the operation could be adversely affected by difficulties
in recruiting and retaining sufficient workforce to meet the needs.
As the environmental and cleaning services industry is a labour-
intensive industry, this exacerbated after the implementation of the
SMW in Hong Kong as workers have more choices, such as security
guards, which may drive workers away from the cleaning industry.
If the Group is unable to maintain the stability of the staff or retain
sufficient number of staff members to perform the service contracts
or fill the vacancies with suitable staff or services from suitable
third party service providers, the quality of services, operation and
financial results would be adversely affected.

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt.
The Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings
to the Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the
importance of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment
process. It also provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working
environment. In order to help cater for the continuous development of the
employees, professional trainings and self development sponsorships are
provided. The Group values any feedback from employees and hopes to
maintain open communication with the latter, which favours a good and
long-lasting relationship.
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Money Lending Business

U

Any adverse changes in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong as well as
the PRC may generally affect market demands and the repayment
abilities of customers which may lead to adverse impact on the
Group’s revenue and liquidity. The Group would from time to time
fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures,
in particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market
situation.

Non-compliance with or any changes in the relevant laws and
regulations may bring various consequences to the Group, including
but not limited to the revocation or suspension of the money lenders
licence and/or the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence.
Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted
and in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is
in compliance with the relevant requirements. Internal reporting
procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employees and customers’ misconduct and/or fraud arises, any
staff can report directly to the management. The staff handbook
has also stipulated that employees and customers’ misconduct and
fraud are prohibited.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to operating in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of various stakeholders including the Group’s
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its
various stakeholders are set out in the paragraph headed “Social” in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section from pages 52
to 87 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise our environmental impact by raising
energy efficiency and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials such as the adoption of paperless systems and practices in
its daily operations, the duplex printing and copying, and the recycling
of ink cartridges and toner cartridges, etc. In addition, the Group has
adopted environmentally-friendly service procedures in providing the
environmental and cleaning services to its customers for which the Group
has obtained certificates and awards from different environmentally-
oriented organisations.

Further details of about the Group’s environmental policies are set out in
the paragraph headed “Environmental” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section from pages 58 to 67 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the PRC and
the Company itself is listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds
high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. Reviews on regulatory compliance of its business
operation are conducted from time to time. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has been in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its listing status in Hong Kong, the environmental and cleaning
services and the money lending business which mainly include but
not limited to the GEM Listing Rules, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and the MLO.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$6,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the classes and movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year are set out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
98 and 99 of this annual report and note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounting to approximately HK$99.3 million (2021:
HK$101.6 million) calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the past five
financial years is set out on page 184 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group’s major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2022 is as follows:
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The largest customer BAEF 9.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAE 31.8%
Subcontracting costs DERAK

The largest subcontractor BADERE 25.1%
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate hARHBEEET 721%

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.
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Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Yu Shaoheng
REATEE

Mr. Lai Tin Ming
RRAASEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIAFHTES

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
e e

Mr. Meng Enhai
RBRBRE

Mr. Wang Cui
THELE

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Yu Shaoheng and Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

During the year and up to date of this annual report, the executive
Directors, Yu Shaoheng and Lai Tin Ming are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report
include Mr. Chan Woon Wing, Mr. Chan Chok Fun, Mr. Lu Yi and Mr.
Tang Antao.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 23 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees, as
well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries
out staff performance appraisal once a year and the assessment result is
used for salary reviews and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills
and knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
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SHARE OPTIONS L

(1) Share Option Scheme (1) BERETE

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (i) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for such period as determined by the Board, being a
date not later than ten business days after the offer date by which
the Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to have
declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the Board to the grantee which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more than
ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer (subject to the
provisions for early termination in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme).
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The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the Board.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in
respect of which the share options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at
the date of the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November
2018 at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together with any
options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue
shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each Eligible Person (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme) in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of the share options to an Eligible
Person would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates abstaining from voting.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, no share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 30 June 2022, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 54,000,000
shares, representing 10% and 10% of the Shares in issue as at 30 June
2022 and 28 September 2022, being the date of this annual report,
respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors and
the chief executive and their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within of the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
company in which of ordinary  Long/short share capital
Name of Director interest is held Capacity shares  position in the Company
REFRER ERARZE
2 BEEHAREE g LERAH HE %R ERITRAEDL
Mr. Yu Shaoheng The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 350,536,631  Long 64.91%
RATRAE NG Bxma A e
Note: BisE -

1. Mr. Yu Shaoheng is the son of Mr. Yu Weiye and the step-son of Ms. Mui
Fong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2022, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
Name of company in which of ordinary Long/short share capital
Shareholder interest is held Capacity shares position in the Company
REHFER EARDA 2
RRER BEEHDARERE &t LERAH HR/ %R ERITRABDL
Mr. Yu Weiye The Company Beneficial owner 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
REERE NN BEHBAA HE
Ms. Mui Fong The Company Interests of spouse (Note 1) 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
55 R NS B B (Fat1) e
Note: Mzt -

1. Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) is the wife of Mr. Yu. Ms. Mui is deemed to be
interested in 54,431,400 Shares owned by Mr. Yu in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year ended
30 June 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year and up to date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective associates as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There are no related party transactions as set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements that falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year.

The material related party transactions are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 39 to 51 of this annual
report.

BE LEIEERSD

REBEEZE - —FA=+HILFE XA 7
SEMAMMNBEARBMERE - HERERTM
BEAD o

EHNARFRE

BREARAAFRENER  UEREEHR
HoRHEZ-__FXRA=ZTHLEFEAR
AER R BITRATHRD25% IHARAL
A -

BEBERE

ARRMEBERARMFEERSAMTES
FELBERNEI - REARR BRI
RAERREZBETRD -

SR ES

REARBERNFHRAY  HEES - ZERKR
REBFEEEHNBEALT(EEZRGEMETR
A]) REAEEXGEZURMEBRBRF X
AIRERE A SRV RSP A (R #E e

BRERXR S
F R A B SRR I EE20 T BL AN 5 %2 5 it

GEM EMRRIFTRE 2 [BER 5 k[ #5548 RE
BRZ] -

BRI X P BN ERE M IS MAM E29 -

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022 37



DIRECTORS’ REPORT &€&

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having been
approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a
resolution to re-appoint Baker Tilly as the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operations and financial position. The Group
has actively put in place measures in mitigating its impact. The Group will
closely monitor the development and will keep its alleviating measures
under regular review.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2022.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
for the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
except for the deviations of the following Codes.

()  Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review and up to the
date of this annual report, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company is performed by the executive
Director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng. The Company considered that under
the supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive
Directors, a balancing mechanism existed so that the interests
of the Shareholders were adequately and fairly represented. The
Company considered that there was no imminent need to change
the arrangement.

(i) The Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that all non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, all non-executive Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
of directors in the articles of association of the Company. Since their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities
during the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of
financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required standards
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors throughout the period under review. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended
30 June 2022.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and annual
budgets;
e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

e approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
e responsible for internal control and risk management; and

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and Board
remuneration.
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As at 30 June 2022 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five Directors, including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, of which one independent non-
executive Director has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise in order to achieve
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance, as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Tin Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 23
of this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering for its
Directors.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among other members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent. None of the
independent non-executive Directors has served the Company for more
than 9 years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1, which include reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements (including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development.
During the year, the Company had arranged a training session to all
Directors in regards to director’s duty which was conducted by an
external professional firm. In addition, Directors also reviewed the reading
materials related to corporate governance and regulations that provided
to them concerning latest developments in corporate governance
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without a specific employment tenure, but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in other clauses in the articles of
association of the Company or in any agreement between the Company
and such Directors (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement), the Directors can be removed from office by notice
in writing served upon him or her signed by not less than three-fourths in
number of the total number of Directors then in office (or, if that is not a
round number, the nearest lower round number) and for the avoidance
of doubt, the counting of the total number of Directors then in office shall
include such Director subject to the proposed removal.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the

Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim
and annual reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement
and scope of audit work of the external auditors. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditors. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and up to the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group
the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

AC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4
Mr. Wang Cui 4/4

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of
the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
and nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and reappointment of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance in compliance with
paragraph A.6 of the Code.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. Qualified candidates then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting
are as follows:

NC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 1/1

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
other things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2022 by band is set out as follows:
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five highest paid individuals are set out in the notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year and up
to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

RC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 1/1

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year,
and Directors shall receive at least 7 days prior written notice of such
meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code. Agendas and
accompanying papers are sent before the Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same.

During the year under review, the Board held four board meetings and

1 general meeting. The Directors attended those meetings in person, by
phone or through other electronic means of communication.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during
the year under review is set out below:

Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Board  General
Name of Directors Meeting  Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shaoheng 4/4 11
Mr. Lai Tin Ming 4/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4 01
Mr. Wang Cui 4/4 01

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly, acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022,
which are set out in “Independent Auditors Report” section on pages 88
to 93 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 30 June 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$788,000 and HK$69,000 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that proper and
effective risk management and internal control systems (the “RMIC
System”) of the Group are maintained. The senior management of the
Company is delegated with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. The senior management of
the whole Group, including but not limited to, the directors, executives
and super of the major operating units of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s RMIC System include a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority, which are designed to achieve business
objectives and goals, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, control over operating and capital expenditures, ensure
the maintenance of proper books and records for providing reliable
financial information used for internal or publication purposes, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and risks to be exposed, and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operations
systems achievement of the Group’s objectives and goals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practice and RMIC System. The Group has established
controlling teams (the “Controlling Teams”) nominated by the Board and
the Audit Committee comprising the directors, executives and supervisors
of the major operating units of the Group to take up the responsibilities
of monitoring the day-to-day operational management, risk management
function, and internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning and
budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation and control
process, identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to achieve
the objectives and goals set. The controlling teams meet regularly with
the Board and the Audit Committee and report on matters to be updated
to the Board and the Audit Committee timely.
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Risk Management Approach

The Group strives to identify and assess the key risks faced by the Group
based on the following risk management approach:

(i) Risks Identification

The Controlling Teams are responsible for identifying potential
risks, through periodically reviewing the Group’s business and
financial data, testing the effectiveness of the Group’s existing
internal control procedures and policies; and

All staff are required and encouraged to report any risks,
particularly those risks that are material weaknesses and
deviation in the Group’s existing internal control procedures
and policies, to the Controlling Teams or the Board and the
Audit Committee.

(i) Risks Assessment and Measurement

Risks identified or reported are further evaluated and
scrutinised, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising
processes by the Controlling Teams;

Material risks that may seriously affect the business, operational
or financial aspects of the Group are immediately handled by
the Controlling Teams, the Board and the Audit Committee;
and

Immaterial risks that are acceptable to the Group will be closely
monitored by the Controlling Teams to ensure that the level of
risk will not increase to an unacceptable level.

(iii) Risks Control and Mitigation

Considering and weighting the benefits and costs of all
available solutions and choosing the appropriate ones;

Elimination of the material risks entirely by taking immediate
remedy actions such as modifying the Group’s existing
business strategies, internal controls and operational
procedures; and

Mitigation of the material risks by reducing their impact as
much as possible such as transferring the impact of the risks
to third parties and implementing alternative procedures and
policies.

(iv) Risks Monitoring

The Board and the Audit Committee in conjunction with the
Controlling Teams closely monitor the risks identified and the
progress of the remedy actions taken to ensure that the level
of risk will not increase to an unacceptable level; and

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted by the Controlling Teams to the Board and the Audit
Committee annually for their review.

RREET

A EHON A TR A B B A
B AN BAR -

(M)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

B

B EA R BB T R AKEA
EB R BEBEARARETERRE
P EREZIEAE P L BB AR AR R BB 7
ERER &

BRI FEEEE T e ERE
FerERZRBERETMARCL
HEGFESEARBHRAR) KNS E
BEANMEREREFRBRNREES
Mo

B R B

B MERBYHREETES BR
KESEHEF - HEBRIHEHE R
ETE—TRHERES

QEAEEZ YIS SLE S
BoEMNERRREERE M EF
SRBEVEZEGARRE &

Bt/ MBS ) BB AN R B Al R A
TEARS - ARRERKTTE L
FETARZHKT -

BRIEFIRATE

Z RGP Al AR IR T SRAVE as
RRA TSRS BRI S

378 38 BRI BB 7 o 5 e (91 A& AN
SERIRNA XIGEE - ARPEERE
BIEF )RR BREANRR &

BB A REAT SR B KRR O R B AR
HEARER - PINEEROTZESE

EFZTAREBERERF REER

B e

EFEELBELZESEER/ MAKF
B 1) BE B2 P s Bl Y LR DA Se R B LR R
BIKFE EFTER AR R EKF M
REHERITEHERER - &

ERNESFREZERERZES
R R FHE RS AR R X W
HoAfRET -

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022 49



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ & A&

During the year, the Controlling Teams has summarized the risks
identified and reviewed the effectiveness of the RMIC System. The
findings have been summarised and submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee for review. The Board and the Audit Committee
concluded that the RMIC System is effective and adequate and the
principal risks identified have been adequately controlled.

The principal risks identified and related control procedures are set out in
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Directors’
Report” section from pages 25 to 28 of this annual report respectively.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as stated in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public.

Certain policies and procedures have been taken by the Group to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include but not limited
to (i) trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;
(i) confidentiality documents are kept by the designated personnel
and placed in the designated locked areas; (i) transmission of inside
information in electronic form should be password-protected; and (iv)
access of inside information is restricted to designated employees on a
need-to-know basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s process
and communications among Board members and with the Shareholders
and the management, and advising the Board and its committees on
all corporate governance matters. He reports to the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15
hours’ professional training for the year ended 30 June 2022.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Office A, 12/F, Tower A, Capital Tower, No. 38
Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to the Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate
website is www.ppsintholdings.com.

All corporate communication materials published on the website of the
Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website as soon as practicable after their release. The
Company’s constitutional documents are also available on our website.
No significant changes were made to these documents during the year
ended 30 June 2021. Information on the website shall be updated on a
regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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The Company is delighted to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”). This ESG Report herein
focuses on providing an overview of the environmental and social aspects
of the Group, and outlines how we continually improve our operational
strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to cope with
the global standards of sustainability.

For details on corporate governance of the Company, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section from pages 39 to 51 of this
annual report.

For details in relation to our financial performance during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the audited financial statements together with related notes
from pages 5 to 20 and pages from 94 to 183 of this annual report
respectively.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This ESG Report has outlined the overall Group’s performance in
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement for the financial year ended 30 June 2022
(“Reporting Period”).

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the data of all operating
units, i.e. the money lending business and the environmental and cleaning
services business, of the Group.

PREPARATION BASIS OF THE ESG REPORT

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, and
complies with the disclosure obligations of “mandatory disclosure” and
“comply or explain” provisions. HKEX's Guide for this ESG Report from
pages 80 to 87 of this annual report is provided for cross-referencing
purpose.

In preparing the ESG Report, the Group has adopted the international
standards and emission factors specified in the guidance materials on
ESG issued by the Stock Exchange for computing the relevant Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)," and there is no change from previous
year in the way the ESG Report has been prepared. The application of
materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “ESG Management —
Materiality Assessment”.

! How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPls, https://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/
rules-and-guidance/other-resources/environmental-social-and-governance/
how-to-prepare-an-esg-report/app2_kpis
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ESG MANAGEMENT
Statement of the Board

As an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise, we
value environmental sustainability and have been striving to integrate the
concept into every part of our daily business operations. The ESG Report
summarizes the strategy, practice and vision of our Group in respect of
the issues related to ESG, and conveys a clear message of our Group’s
devotion for sustainability.

The Board has an overall responsibility for overseeing our Group’s ESG-
related risks and opportunities, establishing the ESG-related strategies
and targets of our Group, and reviewing our Group’s performance
annually against the ESG-related targets. In pursuant of our commitment
towards responsible corporate citizen, we have set up an ESG Working
Group and it comprises members from middle to senior management,
which supports the Board in implementing ESG-related strategies and
targets, and promoting the implementation of measures in relation to
ESG issues identified.

The Board will continue to review our Group’s progress in relation to ESG
issues in order to build a more sustainable business and bring greater
benefits for the society as a whole.

BiR  HEREREE
E=gEy

ERRRRENEERBEE - RABRERE
MARENE Y —BERNONREZESRARE
EBEENSERE - NRE - HERELR
TRETAKRERNRE - He@ e aiREEE
FERRE BEREMES - YHAREEAKE
HAFRBERORA ©
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R N8 - BIEAREERE LB REAR
BEER  Y2RERR HEREREREF
BERAKERSE - RARARTEERRAE
o BPIERRE - e RERTIFE - i
TRESHEREEKEMAK  BEXKESTS
BERE  HeREARBLER  WHER
BARCDEIRE e REaEENER

EXEERHEEEAEEERRE Hak
REERER  DMTEENAHFENEE - 3
RABET S HRE AN ©

S

The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making process and overseeing
the formulation, administration, and assessment of the ESG system.
EESARBERARNETEERE HeRERERNRL -

BIR RS o

ESG Working Group

B HEeRERTHEAL

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

£H-

RE He@REATFEAEMDEFTSEELER

The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

R -H@REENAE

Functional Department

B RERRPT

the preset ESG-related strategies and targets.

Functional departments are responsible for the execution of measures to achieve

BEEHPIAENTHREEENERBENRE  HeREARBELER -
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Our Stakeholders

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of our
business, we make use of various communication channels to understand
and engage our stakeholders. We believe that stakeholder engagement
helps us in better understanding the needs and concerns of all our key
stakeholders. The probable points of concern of the stakeholders and the
way of our communication and responses are listed below.

BANEHE

HRFNEEERRMIXBR T EEEEZE
FAEZER - SR MNERSESRRENRE
LW E - HFEE  HHEN2ES
DR THRAEZIERNDENTEREIS
H o FnE AT BIA KB M6 E R K Ol
FEEFIIREAT ©

Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

HE T BEEAE B BiBEEE

HKEX Compliance with the Listing Rules, and timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
and accurate announcements. updates, and announcements.

EBR S T ETTARA - RERERI TR A o B3 B TR BB U EHRAE -

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government inspections,

preventing tax evasion, business ethics, and
social welfare.

245} BFREREO - PIEsT Rkt
BHAIAE -

Investors and Corporate governance, business strategies and

shareholders performance, and investment returns.

BEERRE PEES  EBEMERR - URIRERR -

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights.

UL ISR hEESR  RREAE -

Suppliers Corporate reputation, payment schedule, and
stable demand.

HrEn PEBE  NRRRRIIBEFK

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule,

reasonable prices, service value, and personal
data protection.

LS RSB = - IRESRMET 8 - SIRER - REKE
B R B A BURIRE -

Employees Rights and benefits of employees,
compensation, training and development, work
hours, occupational health and safety, and
working environment.

== 1E B REN AR - il - FIEER - T
Frer - BEEERZEZURIIERE

Community Community environment, employment
opportunities, community development, and
social welfare.

by HRIRE - ERERE  HEZEERESER -
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tax returns, ongoing communication with relevant
government departments, and other information.
BEIRFD - BUTRE - TRk - SRR
FOPIR R AR A R EA E R o

Briefing sessions and seminars, interviews,
shareholders’ meetings, issue of financial reports
or operation reports for investors, ESG report,
and media and analysts.

RS RN E - S RERRE - mRE
T BREROWERHEVBREXLEREUAR

RE - HERERWE -

Newsletters on the Company’s website.
HEARR BB RER

Site visits.

B FFAD

After-sales services.

BRI -

Union activities, trainings, interviews with
employees, internal memos, and employee
suggestion boxes.

TP 5HI - BEDH  ANBETEIESR
BRAE -

Community activities, employee voluntary
activities, and community welfare subsidies and
donations.

HEES EERLED - HREFFRLRE

% -
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Materiality Assessment

To ensure prompt and proper management of key sustainability
issues, all ESG issues that may have potential impact on our business
operation are evaluated annually. Material aspects are those that reflect
the Group’s significant economic, environmental and social impacts;
or that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders. We have compiled and prioritized the material aspects
with reference to an array of factors, including our Group’s overall
strategy, development, goals and targets. In addition, we have included
KPI in the Report in order to provide our stakeholders and the public a
more comprehensive and profound understanding of the effectiveness
of the implemented operational strategies in pursuing environmental
sustainability. These priorities allow us to uphold our commitment to our
stakeholders while managing the impacts we have on the society and
environment.

The results of the materiality assessment on the identified ESG issues are
set out in the table below:

BEEMAM
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B AEEESFTEUAEERMNESLEE
EEEFENMARE HLeREREE - X
LEEHBERMAEBRNERLCE - RIE R
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ME2RZERZ(BIEAEERERE - &
B -BEENEMBARELAEEREHEEZS
B o Wi RPEERS P MABRERE
Z - UERMNFEOERARENEEMAA
T RATEEAN S EEEESIIRERFEN
T EEIRRR o HEE B SRR B AP R E FE AP
HHERIRENTER  BBEHEOHEED
HEHE o
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EMRHEAE

High
=
g
o (3] (2 116)
E=3N\N
7
c R
Ex o 0006
g 00
E
Low
&
Low Impact on business
i HEBNTE

L
@
oy

I

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022 55



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT %1% « H &R ERERE

ESG Issues RiIE - HEBRERRE
1 Emissions 1 B

2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 2 RERBEHEM

3 Hazardous Waste 3 BEEEY

4 Non-Hazardous Waste 4 EEREEY)

5  Energy Consumption 5 RERERE

6  Water Consumption 6 AKX

7 Natural Resources 7 RANER

8  Climate Change 8 RIRE

9  Employment 9 1BE

10 Health and Safety 10 @EEZE

11 Development and Training 11 FEEIEI

12 Labour Standards 12 B T#R|

13  Supplier Engagement 13 gL

14 Product and Service Responsibility 14 ERERBEL
15 Anti-corruption 15 REF

16 Community Investment 16 HEEE

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BEARET

Our outstanding business performance has earned us various industry ~ F IS MM EEE DR MHRERZITEEE -
awards which have further reinforced our position in the market. The — #—Z@E 7 RN T B - AEBEER
Group continues to be recognized for its efforts to promote corporate BTN EMLE ST MESRAA - TRIIKR
social responsibilities. The following table shows what we have achieved — F{FIR & EARESAIKE -

during the Reporting Period.

Organisers

EZ Y

Awards

3]

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

FERXEXEERGE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEFECEEERE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
HPEEmECEERHE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TEHELEEERE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

PEEECEEERS

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFHBRA A

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFAHRAA

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFEFARAA

Environmental Protection Department
RIBIRES

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BELERGHS

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
REENESHEEER

Environmental Campaign Committee
RIFEDHEREE

Green Council

RirfeE S

Qualification Level Certificate of China Cleaning Industry —
National 1st Level Qualification
HEERBERITESREE —BR—&K

Qualification of Stone Cleaning and Maintenance
AMERREEE

Quiallification of High-Altitude Facades Cleaning
BEIMEIEREE

Quialification of Central Air-Conditioning System Cleaning and
Maintenance

SPEPRGEAERERE
Qualification of Indoor Environment Purification and Monitoring

ERRFFCRENEYD

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 9001:2015

ISO 14001:2015
ISO 14001:2015

ISO 45001:2018
ISO 45001:2018

Certificate of Commendation for joining the Carbon Footprint
Repository for Listed Companies in Hong Kong
xR —BE LT AR E RHE

Caring Company
AR EBEE

Good MPF Employer Award
HeiFEE

The Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification

BB EBHERE

Member of the Sustainable Procurement Charter
AHERBOENE
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

We are an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise
We are committed to increasing the efficiency of resources utilization
and enhancing our environmental performance by adopting world-class
environmental protection practices in our business dealings.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working environment
by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste management,
supporting environmental education and promoting the idea of recycling
and reusing. Our Group has established an environmental management
system and relevant policies and procedures for our business that
meet the international industry specific environmental standards and
obtained ISO 14001:2015 certification. The operation and administrative
department constantly review our internal operational practices to
ensure that they are in line with the concept of sustainable corporate
development. Policies and measures were strengthened and improved
this year so as to effectively manage undesirable environmental impact.

Our Group is currently undergoing an expansion of the environmental
and cleaning services business in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
especially in Shanghai. It is expected that the scale and quality of services
provided by our operations will be further increased and improved in the
following years. Since our Group’s businesses are mainly based in Hong
Kong during the Reporting Period, this ESG Report will mainly focus on
the environmental issues and relevant measures that are applicable to the
operating units in Hong Kong.

To achieve the environmental goals, the Group has implemented the
following measures:

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental impacts
associated with the Group’s activities;

e Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of environmental
stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with the provision of

necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including but
not limited to Environmental Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation
to environmental issues.

Emissions

The Group’s air emissions principally derived from vehicles, while
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted from various types
of activities, including but not limited to direct emissions from vehicles,
indirect energy emissions from electricity, and indirect emissions from
waste paper disposal.

In the absence of production process, the direct GHG emissions
generated from our business activities are relatively minimal, and our
services do not contribute to material impacts on the environment.

Nevertheless, we have implemented various measures to minimize
emissions, thus reduce the impact on the environment.

Motor vehicles

During the Reporting Period, we owned a fleet of 18 vehicles for our
business operations, as well as transporting our management team
members, guests and clients.

The total mileage travelled of the vehicles was approximately 427,425
kilometers (2021: 392,129 kilometers). The total fuel consumption of the
vehicles was approximately 135,672 liters (2021: 125,888 liters). Due to
an increased number of projects and distance of the project sites, the
total fuel consumption and distance travelled by the vehicles increased,
resulting in an increase of the amount of NO_, SO, and PM emissions
when compared to the year ended 30 June 2021. The types of key air
pollutants and their respective emission data are as follows:

EHRRF

RBEHRA - RAOBTHRMAEEARENN
BERBRBERLRN - BREETRREEN
RIRGD - AERBEYESANERR T HFEE
AIHERH A IR BT HIRGF

e

AEBENERFNEIZRRNER - MAER
BIRERBDHNEZRESEES - AP
BREETRREREEINERN  BEEL
) [ ¢ RE R B DA N i P2 R AR EE AR O R 3R B
i

MR EEERE - HRMNEBESELS
MEZREREBHMREED - TR RES
SHRBELEATE -

BEWMLL - HADERDEEREE - URARE
HORABER - RETRELIRBNTE

baZ: 1

REERA - HPE — R 188IH THAKK
B AREBLEARBRERMANEEZER
RE - BEREP -

RETREBRIRBY4I2T A5 B (T ——
F 1 8302,120R 8 ) - AEMMEHRBEREE AL
135,672 (= ZF = —4 : 125,888F) - MAIA
HEE U\ NIBE G ERE N - MEEEESE
MOREITEREEE N - BHRAEY - mEAl
YERBERYTERERHE T - —F A=+
AIEFEBAER - TEERSEWERLE
ERFDIE ¢ TUNNE

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Unit BE—_E—_—& BE-E-—%

Major Emissions FEHERY B NRA=THLEE NRA=THLEE

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) AAlLy g 1,922,802 1,672,344

Sulphur Oxides (SO,) k=Rl g 2,181 2,023

Particulate Matter (PM) FERY) g% 146,603 128,520
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Data on Greenhouse Gas Emission BEREHHLEE
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Unit BE-ZE—-—F BE-ZE—-—F
Types of Emissions B R By NRA=THLEEFE ANRA=THLEEFE

Scope 1 - Direct Emissions HE1-EEHER
Motor vehicles RE kg CO.e 359,554 334,495
Fr_StRE=

Scope 2 - Energy Indirect EE2— BYR M E B
Emissions
Electricity? EWIE kg CO,e 10,411 8,620

TR-S(LREE

Scope 3 - Other Indirect & E3 — HAth R HE K
Emissions
Disposal of paper IR AR kg CO,e 5,234 7,769
Fr-atmkE=
Business travel by air RS ZE IR T kg COe - 893

TR-SHKEE

Total Emissions of GHG BER AN
Total emissions HEHERR kg CO,e 375,199 351,777
Fr-—&tmE=
Emissions intensity PeEE kg CO,e/thousand 1.01 0.99
revenue
Fr ek
28 /Tl

During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas emissions intensity ~ AMREERA - AEEE =R ALK E 51.01
by the Group is 1.01 kg CO,e per thousand revenue, which has TR -EREE Tl  ERERRS
achieved the target set in the previous report. To uphold the principles ~ RFTEISZMEIZ - AR EHERE - &
of sustainable development with a view of balancing business growth,  IRZEHEILE - MR ORI D EH - I
we are committed to reducing our carbon footprint, and aim to maintain & BELEL F 1 KM EEIREH 10 &0 BT AIFE i LA &
our greenhouse gas emissions intensity at or below 1.20 kg CO,e per  THIAF &R - ISKET —HREHMKAER
thousand revenue in the next reporting period through adopting the EHIMZRE#FES T o= 1.20T 7 41
measures specified in the subsection headed “Electricity and Energy  fRE&EsA T :

Usage” and also the following mitigating measures:

2 For Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission (indirect emission from consumption 2 HEBEREREBHNINES NIEAEE
of purchased electricity), the latest National Power Grid Emission Factor is in BOME - AREEH B AR IR IR ED B A9 BE M
accordance with the requirements of the Notice on the Key Work in relation P02 E R ERBB MR EEIZEMER
to the Management of Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting in TEMBMN) KRN E2RERENAT X
2022 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC, and BEHEENNEN —aLE2HNEE -

the latest carbon dioxide equivalent emissions intensity of electricity sold by
Hong Kong Electric are adopted.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Fleet Management

At the end of each month, we would obtain a summary of fuel
consumption from our service provider in order to monitor the usage
of fuel of all our vehicles. Furthermore, regular maintenance checks are
performed for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency,
to ensure road safety and to keep carbon dioxide emission at their
minimum.

Air-conditioning

Employees are encouraged to set the offices’ air-conditioners at a
comfortable temperature (best at 25.5 degrees Celsius) and all the air-
conditioners that are not in use should be switched off. The Group
has also put reminder notices at prominent places to raise employees’
awareness of electricity consumption and energy conservation.

Travelling by air

During the Reporting Period, there were no business air travels taken
by the employees (2021: 4) due to outbreak of the coronavirus diseases
2019 (“COVID-19”), resulting zero kilograms of CO, emissions (2021: 893
kilograms). Employees are only required to travel by air, when necessary,
otherwise, we would arrange telephone or video conference calls instead
of face-to-face meetings to reduce the carbon emissions that are
indirectly caused by air travel.

Use of Resources

We always endeavour to promote sustainability and aim to cease
resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the environment.
Various measures have been implemented to attain the goal of
using resources efficiently. These measures have been effectively
communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring all staff members understand
clearly the importance of conserving energy and make full use of the
available resources at work.

Based on our operating model of the environmental and cleaning
business, most of our water, electricity and energy consumption
is directly provided by our customers or publicly sourced by the
government and such consumption quantity is not controllable by us.
Nevertheless, the Group has formulated policies and educated the
employees on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and
other raw materials in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
Internal environmental review has been conducted regularly to assess the
environmental impact of the group business activities so that the energy
and water usage can be closely monitored. Measures that have been
taken to minimize the usage of resources are detailed below.

BHEHE

REAAR - RAKRKRMNRBEREHRE
MREDBREREE - ABERIAFIPAA E@WMAMAF
FER o UboN - PRAEEI 1T E R
& DMERTTHURERRE - BREIE L 2 A
Ko its — AR B E RFFAERIEKRF

9

HPISEEE B A ENZERHREETENR
B (RER25\KXE) - LRAFMERERHN
o NREE TR RROE R IZEEA -

e BB E A -

i

MiEEHETT

RBEHAN  FH2019FH T HRES
([coviD-19)&1EEE - RETERAREBEM
TIRIT(CE-—F 4R)  WEAS TR
SIEiRBER(ZE = —4F : 893F %) - [EE{E
R B SETMERTT - SRIRMEZH
B EEEEUREEYEEE - M
SRR ZE R T R AR AU AR FEAR

BRER

B —RBAREAABEERENUALE R
HEERRE  UWRHRBENBENEST -
REIRUMERERNER  RACERZIA
it - RSB ANEEESRET - IR
ERESREROMVERNEZ LA TIE
PRIERRIREIR

REBRRMBREBOLERN - HARID
K BREFERERAZPRHKARTE
RIEH - BABEREEEHRFIES - A
- AREERBABEEREABIEBER -
HEEREARNABERIR - KEEMERM
ERANER - RA—EEHETRPRREEE
UHEREXEBHIRENTE - NETL]
ERBRMKHERIBN » RERARE MR
BIRER - BPIFAERIEESFBDT
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Water Usage

The existing water supply adequately meets our daily operational
needs, which is mainly used for cleaning and sanitation, and we have
no difficulties in sourcing water. The water consumption was 66 cubic
meters and the intensity of total water consumption was 0.06 cubic
meters per employee (2021: 89 cubic meters; 0.08 cubic meters per
employee), which has achieved the target set in the previous report. We
will make continuous efforts in working towards the target of maintaining
the intensity of total water consumption at or below 0.10 cubic meters
per employee in the next reporting period.

We encourage our employees working in the headquarters to consume
resources only where appropriate, and turn off the faucets tightly. We
also fix dripping taps immediately, and install flow restrictors and spray
nozzles where possible.

Our on-site employees are required to follow a standard water pollution
control procedure in order to reduce water pollution. Wastewater
containing bleach, buffering cream or specific detergent is diluted before
it is discharged into sewers. To enhance our employees’ knowledge of
wastewater discharge, relevant ordinances and environmental measures
are introduced to our employees.

Electricity and Energy Usage

Our energy consumption results principally from electricity consumption.
Our electricity consumption was 16,206 kWh and the intensity of
electricity consumption was 13.63 kWh per employee (2021: 11,402
kWh; 9.84 kWh per employee), which has failed to achieve the target set
in the previous report. The increase in intensity of electricity consumption
is mainly due to increase business operation of the Group during the
Reporting Period. We endeavour to establish a low-carbon culture and
work towards the target of keeping the total energy consumption intensity
below 12 kWh per employee in the next reporting period.

As part of our many initiatives to reduce energy consumption, we have
adopted and implemented the following measures to preserve energy
and reduce electricity usage:

e Turn off lighting and appliances that are not in use to reduce energy
consumption;

e Turn off air conditioners and lights during non-office hours and in
idle rooms;

e  Employees are required to put computers and other devices into

sleeping mode or turn them off when they are not in use (such as
during customer visit and lunch time) during business hours;
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° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air conditioners,
computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure they are operating
efficiently;

° Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode by
default, and the sleeping mode is automatically turned on, when not
in use for a certain time interval;

e  Used printer cartridges at the head office are sent back to the
manufacturers for recycling; and

° Place posters “Saving Electricity; Turn off the Light when Leaving”
at prominent places to encourage employees to reduce energy
consumption.

Generation of Waste

Solid waste is mainly generated from the Group’s day-to-day operations,
including, but not limited to office-use paper, office waste and waste
generated from the provision of our cleaning service.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed material
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by us.

During the course of our business operations in providing cleaning
services and money lending services, no packing materials were used,
and thus, no data in this respect is available.
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RBERA - MEEANBERESERZNHE

During the Reporting Period, the amount of hazardous and non-

hazardous wastes produced are as follows: m
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Unit BE-ZE—-_—F BE-E—-—%
Types of Wastes BEEYER By NAZ+THLEEE RA=ZTHLEFE
Hazardous Waste BEEEEY
Chemical disinfectants {LEEEH kgT 5 106,598 102,979
Pesticides STyl kgT 5 1,187 1,186
Total weight mEE kgF % 107,785 104,165
Intensity of waste generated FFELEEYERE kg/thousand 0.30 0.30
revenue of
environmental
and cleaning
services
TR/ BEREZR
BR# < T T s
Non-hazardous Waste BEBEZEY
Paper 4R kgTm 1,090 1,618
Towels Em kgT 2,785 2,104
Gloves FE kgT 2,305 2,094
Scouring cloth M kg5 293 373
Garbage bag BIRER kgTe 5,936 7,420
Total weight WEE kgT = 12,409 13,609
Intensity of waste generated FFEEBEEYRE  kg/thousand 0.03 0.04
revenue
Fr/FrdkzE

RMEBRAN - MEENBEREMEEHS
EHERKFE - FIEANEESEEVEERLD
13% M EIRFLRIME NI H B IR o F A
EENABERBEEEYRAEE LEURRFT
RERFZRRBER  MEEIRKERIER
BAMTEEE  BRARTERSHENER
BEMEENBEEZENREZEREMTE D
AREBEE-_E-_—_FANAZTHLEFERNEE
IKFEIEINAZA10% f220% ©

During the Reporting Period, the intensity of hazardous waste generated
has remain the same level and the intensity of non-hazardous waste
generated has decreased by 13%, which both have achieved the
target set in the previous report. Our generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste depends greatly on the type of cleaning services
provided, considering the uncertainties of the type of future cleaning
projects, we target the increases in intensity of hazardous waste and
non-hazardous waste generated to be no more than 10% and 20%
respectively, for the next reporting period compared to the intensity level
in the year ended 30 June 2022.
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In order to achieve the target and alleviate the pressure on landfills
and promote environmental friendliness within the Group, we have
implemented various measures to encourage recycling of office supplies
and other materials.

Reduction of printing and paper usage

We require our staff members to make full use of office paper before
its disposal and have incorporated various measures into our business
operations. For example, we implement the policy of double-sided
printing and copying, and disseminate information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage
our employees to avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products, and to use refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries.
Recycling bins are also available to collect used products, such as waste
papers and cartridges toners, at the headquarters. We will continue to
leverage the use of technology for communication with our employees
and customers, aiming to go paperless.

Reduction of waste generated from the provision of our services

Our employees are encouraged to organize, maintain and clean the
garbage and recycled waste holding areas; recycled waste is sorted
into appropriate receptacles. Appropriate signage is placed on the bins,
stating what type of waste or recyclables should be put in the bin.

Moreover, our Group policy requires employees to bring back all the
bottles provided them. If cleaning chemicals have been used up,
employees are not allowed to dispose of the empty bottles that keep
the cleaning chemicals without proper consent. Empty bottles must be
collected and refilled with cleaning chemicals for reuse.

Climate Change

To address the global concern about climate change that affects
not only the environmental systems but also our daily lives, we have
considered the climate-related issues and incorporated them into its risk
management system to enhance our resilience and adaptive capacity to
potential climate change impacts.
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Acute physical risks can arise from extreme weather events such as
flooding and storms and chronic physical risks can arise from sustained
high temperatures, while transition risks may result from changes
in environmental-related regulations. Extreme weather events may
impact our operations or our customers’ assets, which in turn cause
damage to our assets or our customers’ properties leaving them unable
to repay their loan. Upon evaluation, our Group provides an array of
services to customers that are not located in high-risk flood areas, and
thus the risk that such extreme weather events impacting our assets,
operations or our customers’ assets are relatively low. While sustained
high temperatures may increase the risk of heat stroke of our employees
working outdoors. We have established a safety management system
and provided safety guidelines to employees working under these events.
As for the potential transition risks, our Group continues to monitor the
regulatory environment, such as the recent passage of municipal solid
waste charging, to ensure that our services meet the demands and
expectations of our customers and regulators.

It is expected that potential extreme weather conditions, sustained high
temperatures, changes in environmental-related regulations would not
result in a material impact on our Group’s operation. Nevertheless, we
continue to monitor the climate-related risks and implement relevant
measures to minimize the potential physical and transition risks.
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The Group has considered the potential climate-related risks and
opportunities in respect of the recommendations of the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures, in which potential physical risk and
transition risk from climate change may pose adverse financial impacts
on the Group’s businesses. The potential climate-related risks are
summarized as below:

AEECHRIREREY BE B RE TIEENE
BEEEZERIEERNEERR &%@ Hep

RIREEHEEERRER &ﬂﬁﬂ BESIAR
SEXBERTFHEZE - Eﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ
Britaian T

Potential Financial Short (current Medium (one to Long (four to
Risk Type Risks Impact reporting period) three years) tenyears) Mitigation Strategy
BRER Bl EEnkzE BH(REESE)  HE(-22F)  RE(BDETE) HERR
Physical Risks Extreme weather o Reduced revenue Establish adverse weather condition policy
conditions such as from business due to Maintain or expand the supplier base to
flooding and typhoon business and supply avoid disruption
chain disruptions
ERRER BRAREAMAL o RXBREEEDE HEESRRENNE
R&R) BHRHBUERYD BRUBAREBERIEEPE
Sustained elevated ~ ®  Increased in business Adopt energy and resources conservation
temperature operating costs measures to avoid overconsumption of
natural resources
KEmn o BNEREENA R RRERSNER B2BR R
BRER
Transition Risks Changes in ¢ Higher operating costs Adopt energy conservation measures to
environmental-related to adopt new practices recluce emissions
regulations or technologies Continue to monitor the regulatory
environment to ensure that the Group
complied with the environmental-related
law and regulation
BERR REEBROED o ENEEAIRE RIS REbURL D HE
FATERIER REEREERRRRISEETRR
HRARER
Shift in consumer o Reduced demand Adhere to the Group’s sustainable
preference to products for cleaning (evelopment concept, strictly control the
incorporating more services, decreased cleaning process and commit to produce
environmentally- competitiveness and high-quality services and products to meet
friendly concept create adverse impact the expectations of consumers and the
0N revenues market
HBERFERRA o EZREERHS BRAEENTRELRES BRER
FARERERNED HENTERYE AR INNREBERE RER
ERTHYE e REE RS ES
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

We value our employees and focus on building a safe and pleasant
working environment for them. We offer attractive remuneration packages
as well as provide plenty of internal and external training opportunities for
our employees, in order to attract, motivate and retain the right people.

Before the start of employment, employees are required to enter into an
employment contract, where the duties and responsibilities of his or her
role are clearly stated. Moreover, we have a set of personnel policies
and procedures as well as a staff handbook that set out our standard
internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, compensation, dismissal, diversity
of origins, anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits of our employees, etc. The relevant policies for employment and
labour practices are listed as follows.

Compliance

We strictly comply with the requirements of the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, the Labour Law and the Social Security Law as well as other
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC which cover
employment protection and benefits. During the Reporting Period, we
complied with all laws and regulations in relation to employment that
have a significant impact on us. No confirmed significant non-compliance
incidents were noted by the Group.

Employment

Employees are valuable assets to the Group and the key driving force
of our sustainable performance. We welcome people with different
backgrounds to join our team to add value to our pool of professional
expertise of the industry and bring in innovative ideas. As at 30 June
2022, the Group employed a total of 1,189 members of staff, with 1,131
employees in Hong Kong and 58 employees in the PRC, 992 full-time
and 197 part-time employees.
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The following table sets forth the breakdowns of our employees by  TXRHIN _ZE - —FX A=+ HIZMERI RF

gender and by age group as at 30 June 2022: HRARRIE 7 e B RA4E -

Male Female Total
Age Group Fip4a 5| B fog i3 Fob
18-25 182 255% 5 4 9
26-35 26% 355, 18 17 35
36-45 36E455, 69 82 151
46-55 462555 67 238 305
56-65 56Z655% 109 356 465
Above 65 6557 A £ 69 155 224
Total st 337 852 1,189

During the Reporting Period, a total of 682 members of staff were HRMEHR - £HFEBLFHILECLEEE
dismissed or resigned from their positions in Hong Kong and the PRC.  fR{E Sk B E H BT - B B iRk Rt s i

The statistics for employee turnover rates are as follows: N
Number of
Employee Turnover Rate
EEHE k=

By Gender BRI B2
Male F 196 58%
Female egi 486 57%
By Age Group RERERE D
18-25 18E251%, 13 144%
26-35 26£355% 22 63%
36-45 3624575% 80 53%
46-55 462553% 198 65%
56-65 562 655% 265 57%
Above 65 655% A £ 104 46%
By Geographical Region T EE S
Hong Kong B 662 59%
PRC s 20 34%
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Anti-discrimination and integrity

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working environment
where all employees are treated equally and respectfully. Any kinds of
discrimination or harassment based on the employees’ gender, age,
marital status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace are
strongly prohibited. Employees are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. A set of policies and procedures is in place
detailing the aim, complaint procedure, and appeal procedure on equal
opportunities. During the recruitment process, we only focus on the
capability and attitude of the interviewee, thus people with disabilities are
also welcome to be part of our Group.

We always listen and respond to the requests of our employees. It is the
goal of the Group to create a friendly and peaceful working environment.
We encourage our employees to provide feedback in relation to
any employment-related matters, especially when they encounter
any unpleasant or undesired treatments from colleagues or senior
management. Employees may report issues to his or her department
head and lodge a formal complaint. Any complaints received will be kept
confidential. If any unfair treatments and harassments are found and
confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in written form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her depending on
the seriousness of the incident.

By adopting the above practices, we comply with, in all material respects,
the corresponding ordinances and its respective codes of practices,
which includes the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 527), and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602)
supported by the Hong Kong equal Opportunities Commission (“EOC”).

Attract and retain talents

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. Our remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees. Management
has been constantly reviewing the staff remuneration package and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments will be made
periodically, to conform with the market standard in order to retain talents
and ensure the offer is competitive as compared to our competitors in
the industry. A standard package includes basic salary and the statutory
pension benefit such as the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) in Hong
Kong, the social insurance and housing provident fund in the PRC. We
also offer discretionary bonus based on the individual performance of the
employees and our financial performance.
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Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various welfare
and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees are entitled
to all public holidays as well as paid leave in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance and their job level. Long service award is offered
as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-serving
employees. In addition, we offer discounted dental care plan to our
employees, which their spouse and children can also enjoy.

We emphasize the unity and harmony at work. Over the years, our
Human Resources Department has made efforts in organizing activities
to strengthen the bonding of employees within the Group. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not organized any gathering activities. It
is mainly due to the concern to reduce the risk of virus transmission and
employee infection. Our Group will continue to explore more opportunities
in the future.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. Our safety management system which is
formulated based on the requirements of the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong is accredited to the leading
international standard of ISO 45001.
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To ensure all accidents and injuries are properly recorded, and are
handled accordingly by the relevant employees, the Group has a
comprehensive policy for accidents reporting procedures. During the
Reporting Period, there were a total of 54 cases of work-related injuries
and a total of 1,922 lost days due to work injury; 1 work-related fatality
case was recorded for the Reporting Period, which the Group did
not recorded any work-related fatality case in the past two reporting
periods. It was a fatal traffic accident recorded during the employee’s
commute from work. After the traffic accident, the Group has reminded
all employees about the occupational safety. Since the provision of our
services may expose our employees to a certain degree of occupational
hazards, all work-related health and safety performance, including work
procedures, working at height, occupational road risk, and machinery
safety, are closely monitored by the Operation and Administrative
Department of the Group. We continue to reflect on our existing safety
policies and is committed to continuously adapt and improve its
occupational safety measures as would be necessary.

For the year

AERMEEHREESEZ ST A ERH
EEHEITEERRE  ARECHEMEREER
MEITEEMECR o RGN - KB A48T
BE I%TE'SEIVE?E%(.:/J 922K ° 3R
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For the year For the year

ended ended ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020

BE-Z—-—F BE-ZE——F BE_Z_ZTH

NE=1THIEFE AKNA=+HLFE KRA=+HLEFE

Number of injuries TERE 54 47 42

Lost days BERIERR 1,922 1,386 1,675

Work-related fatality AT TR AZ 1 - -
Employees are required to receive training on how to use relevant (B 878 X W{a]{£ A EE#ESE - T A MM R

machines, tools and materials and must be well equipped before they
provide services to our clients. Supervisors are assigned to take the
responsibility of overseeing the operations, make immediate responses,
and notify the management if the hazards in the workplace are noted.
Furthermore, we conduct periodic risk assessment in order to timely
identify, evacuate and mitigate any new risks from workplace and
to ultimately provide our employees with a healthy and safe working
environment.

Employees are also required to familiarize themselves with and follow
our “Occupational Health and Safety Plan”, which details the safety
requirements when performing services. For instance, the use of personal
protective equipment such as proper gloves, safety goggles, masks, use
of appropriate tools for picking up garbage, proper use of chemicals as
per standards etc., to reduce the risk of accidental injuries.
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Safety rules are translated into various languages to cater for the
different needs of our employees. The Operation and Administrative
Department provides updates on health and safety issues to the staff
members on a regular basis. The Group has incorporated safety
management awareness into every stage of our operations. Our safety
culture and policies are also introduced to our contractors and partners
by incorporating safety requirements into the terms of the service
agreements.

In the midst of COVID-19 pandemic, we had developed contingency
plans to ensure that all practicable preventive and protective measures
are in place to minimize the risk of spread of the coronavirus, including
but not limited to employees’ health declarations, daily temperature
checks, mask wearing and social distancing requirements. We pay close
attention to latest developments regarding the COVID-19 pandemic and
regularly reviews such plans to ensure their adequacy and suitability.

Development and Training

We believe that investing in employees through training will help
promote job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. Different
types of training are provided to employees to make sure that they
are acknowledged with updated information and possess sufficient
knowledge and skills to provide quality services to our customers. For
instance, training includes but is not limited to driving safety, business
writing, operational training, orientation, as well as information technology
security.

The total number of training hours for the Reporting Period was
approximately 31,281 hours and the average training hours per employee
was approximately 26 hours. The average number of training hours
completed by each male and female employee were approximately 31
hours and 25 hours respectively. The average number of training hours
completed by junior staff, senior staff and manager, and management
were approximately 27 hours, 0.1 hour and 0.1 hours, respectively. The
percentage of total employees trained was 59%, and the percentage of
employees trained by gender and by employee category are as follows:

Percentage of employees
trained by gender
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Continuous education enhances the competitiveness of the employees
as well as the Group in the industry. The Group is committed to providing
our employees resources and opportunities, so that they can have clear
career goals to progress within the Group.

Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the Employment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC in relation
to employees’ protection and benefits. Every employment is subject
to a stringent internal review process that involves a well-established
procedure to verify a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and employment of child labour. For instance, the
staff member responsible for recruitment collects the identity proofs
from the candidates to ensure that the age of the candidates fulfill the
requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited. If
management discovers there is any employment of forced or child
labour, we will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees are over the age of 18, and have
been properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group places emphasis on supply chain management, which
is achieved by maintaining long-term relationships with credible and
reputable suppliers that offer quality products and services. Environmental
and social factors are taken into considerations when choosing our
suppliers. Suppliers with certain qualifications, such as certification of
ISO 14001 or ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification or ISO
45001 or other accreditation, etc. will be given preference.

In addition to the quality of product or service, the suppliers’
environmental value and awareness of occupational health and safety
are considered during supplier selection. We have a guideline on
procurement of detergents, pesticides and other work-related materials,
and set out clear considerable factors when choosing suppliers’
products.

We continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors in
respect to products supplied, service quality, reliability, environmental
performance and occupational health and safety. We also consider
the principle of green procurement and constantly evaluate the use of
materials to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.
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It is our wish to collaborate with our suppliers in the development
and application of innovation, participation in production process
enhancement for the continuous optimization of supply chain capabilities
as well as fulfilment of our responsibilities in social and environmental
protection.

Currently, we have a total of 42 major suppliers, amongst them, 29
suppliers are located in Hong Kong and 13 suppliers are located in the
PRC.

Product and Service Responsibility

At the Group, our primary focus is to provide high quality services to our
customers. We value the importance of confidentiality of our customers
by protecting their personal information. For advertising, we strictly
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and in the
PRC to avoid conveying any incorrect messages to the public.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, and no complaints were received in relation to our services
provided. No non-compliance issues or grievances were noted by the
Group.

Customer Management

For the environmental protection business, the Group places great
emphasis on quality control. We have obtained ISO 9001:1015, ISO
14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018, and are committed to delivering
professional services and achieving customer satisfaction. To understand
clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments and communicate with our
clients before commencing services.

We have a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality
Management Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and
objectives. During the performance of our services, our employees will
carry out regular check on the service quality, including services delivered
by the Group’s own employees and third-party service providers, and
record occasions of substandard performance and any follow-up actions
taken.

Moreover, management members would hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review and discuss various aspects of operations
to ensure that the services provided meet clients’ expectations. We
continuously collect feedback from clients about service quality,
environmental and workplace safety performance, and application of
material and tools. To enhance clients’ confidence in the Group, we
promptly investigate the root cause of unsatisfying services, provide
corrective solutions and carry out immediate remedial and preventive
actions in response to the complaints received from our clients.
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For the money lending business, we provide one-on-one service to our
customers and design loan repayment schedule which best suits the
needs of our customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending borrowers by
the Group’s employees. We understand that good customer service is
essential in maintaining long-term relationships with our customers.

The mission of our customer service emphasizes the provision of quality
services, effective communication and responsive solution. The interests
of our customers are placed at top priority.

Business Ethics

In order to build customer trust and loyalty, we have set out rules
to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential information. For
instance, every employee is required to enter into a confidentiality
agreement which forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary
information to parties outside the Group, either during or after
employment, without the Group’s authorization.

The confidentiality agreement specifies the content and scope of
confidentiality, obligations of the employees, and liability for the breach
of agreement. Disclosing or copying any of the Group’s trade secret
without the consent from management is strictly prohibited. If there are
any employees discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data,
the Group will dismiss the employees concerned and reserve the right to
legal proceedings.

We endeavor to protect the information system, prevent virus attack and
the leakage of clients’ information. Training relating to cyber security and
relevant risk management is provided to our employees to enhance the
employees’ awareness of cyber security.

Since our employees have access to personal data of the customers,
it is important for us to ensure the privacy of customers’ information.
The Group continues to monitor, review and, when necessary, update
its privacy principles and policies to ensure they are complying with
all relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with all relevant law and regulations in relation to data
protection, including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous Amendments)
Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.
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Advertising

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but
not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, which
constitutes a significant influence to the Group’s business.

The Group strictly complies with the advertising requirements. All kinds
of advertisements, such as leaflet or websites, are carefully drafted and
avoiding the use of false descriptions to mislead customers. All final drafts
of the advertisement must be approved by our management before bulk
printing.

Moreover, we have designated employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene services and airline catering support services
works to ensure that we strictly comply with local laws and regulations
regarding advertising and labelling.

During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.

Trademark Management

We have registered trademarks which are important to our business. We
regularly monitor whether our trademarks are being infringed. We are
committed to protecting intellectual property rights which we handle with
great care during our daily operations.

Anti-corruption

We clearly understand that financial crime can have significant
consequences to our customers and us. Moreover, the community and
the economies in which we operate in can also be greatly impacted.
Therefore, we are committed to making efforts to address the issues of
corruption, bribery and money laundering.

We maintain and implement our own anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
anti-fraud practices and procedures. We do not support, nor tolerate,
any corrupt practices and making or receiving of bribery payments. We
have established a clear policy to guide our employees in this regard. In
addition, the employment contracts of our employees include the code
of conduct for them to follow. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they should abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities or
any activities which might exploit the Group’s or client’s interests.
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Directors of the Company should declare in writing for any business
which he/she has any direct or indirect financial interest in, which
competes with the Group or the Group has business dealings with. The
Group will take disciplinary action against the employees who breach the
rules. The employees may also be subject to termination of employment.
Where criminality is suspected, a report will be made to the relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities if necessary.

Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to immediate supervisor
or Audit Committee members for any suspicious activities, including any
request, receipt or acceptance of any forms of benefits from any persons,
companies or organizations that may cause conflict of interest with the
Group, and misconducts which are related to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money-laundering. The whistle-blower’s identity remains anonymous
and is protected throughout the investigation; the whistle-blower should
also not be placed into any disadvantaged position in relation to the
employment.

In particular to our money lending business, we developed an Anti-
Money Laundering (“AML”) policy and perform due diligence and Know-
Your-Customer procedures on all customers before accepting loan
applications. Documents, including ID/passport, address proof, etc.,
will be obtained before entering into business relationships with our
customers. Our Group strictly follows the AML and Counter-Terrorist
Financing guideline issued by the Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed Money
Lenders Association Limited to ascertain the background of the
customers, to identify suspicious money-laundering behaviours, and to
report any suspicious transactions. Under the current practice, when
it comes to the attention of the employees that a customer may be
involved in any money laundering activities, the case will be reported to
a member of senior management who will then decide whether it should
be reported to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit. During the Reporting
Period, we provided 4 classroom trainings to all employees involved in
the provision of money lending services, including the directors. The
trainings were held by our compliance officer and each training sessions
lasted for 3 hours.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. There was no
corruption or bribery incident reported within the Group.
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Community Investment

We believe that corporate social responsibility is the backbone of
corporate values, and continue to dedicate time and effort to give back
to the local community. For the eleven consecutive years, we have
been named a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of our contributions to support community building,
environmental conservation, and people development.

During the Reporting Period, our Group supported the Fu Hong Society
but we had not organized any community and charity activities, to reduce
the risk of virus transmission in the community and employee infection.
Our Group will continue to explore more public welfare activities in the
future after the COVID-19 situation improves and restrictions are lifted.
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE GUIDE CONTENT INDEX
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks

[EE it E=x:0] fFE
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
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$51ZB2.3 implemented and monitored.

TR AN RO B SR A2 FR B 2 8 5 » IA
KARRAAIT RESER K -

B3: Development and Training
B3 : & M iEil

General Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
Disclosure | knowledge and skills for discharging PR EE
—AR duties at work.
ERRAEEEITIIEBENME R
BERIIR ©
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
RASRAE by gender and employee category R 15
512B3.1 (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RERREESR(NSRERE - B4R
ERE)EONZIEEBSL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and Training
BIRAE per employee by gender and employee | & K23
1E1ZB3.2 category.

RURIREBERED - BREETK
SR -

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : TR

General
Disclosure
—Rg iR EE

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labor.

BEAD IEE Takog 45 TH) -

@ BoE:R

() WFHETABEALEOEEA
#RIRDI

BV o

LLabour Standards
85 TAAY
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EE i pud =8 R
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review LLabour Standards

RARIE K employment practices to avoid child and | 4 T X8|
F51ZB4.1 forced labor.
R BRI E AR ET R

SIS T -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Labour Standards
RIRAE such practices when discovered. BT R

HiEB4.2 | HIEERERIBERFBRARBIEM
R -

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : e E IR

General Policies on managing environmental and | Supply Chain Management
Disclosure | social risks of the supply chain. HpEsEE R

— MR EE ERHEENRE I ERBEE -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management
RASRAE K region. HpEsmEIE

F51EB5.1 i B D HEREAE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain Management
RARRAE K to engaging suppliers, number of HpEGEE IS

FE1EB5.2 suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

HE R AEEENIEN - mERT
BRAEHHNHEREE - LARBEHNT
MEEETTE ©

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management
RSRAE environmental and social risks along HERER

$512B5.3 the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A SR R R B EIRE A IRIE K&
HERBRAER - ARIEERITRER

abz
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Supply Chain Management
BSRAE environmentally preferable products HpEssE R

FE1EB5.4 and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

i A 7T 3% P Y R (R 7 2% IR IR EE
KMARTSHIEHI - LA BRI T B
E o
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Aspect
=]

Description
i pud

Chapter/Section
E=x:0]

Remarks

ik

B6: Product and Service Responsibility
B6 : Em&IRISEE

General Information on: Product and Service
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Responsibility
—RH R (o) compliance with relevant laws and EmMREET
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
ERAMREHESNREHRERZS -
BE - RERALEEEURERTED
@ BE: K
b) BETFHBETAGEATENHEEE
EYSER
BEH -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable As we provide cleaning services
RASRIA K shipped subject to recalls for safety and | i 7 and financing services, there
1515B6.1 health reasons. were no products subject to
EENDEREMmBEP AL EER recall.
BhHmARWKN AL BREMIREERIRBE R E
RRTS - TR PIF A B W )
& o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product and Service
RASRIE K complaints received and how they are Responsibility — Customer
F51ZB6.2 dealt with. Management
BEEANREMEBRBORFBENRE | EnkRkBEET-—EFE
% - i
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product and Service
RASRAE K observing and protecting intellectual Responsibility — Trademark
E1£B6.3 property rights. Management
it g ERRENREEEBANEN - | EmREEE-HEE
b
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process | Product and Service
BRAE and recall procedures. Responsibility
¥E1EB6.4 HE S E BIR R E mBUGAR T Em&RBEE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | Product and Service
RASRAE and privacy policies, how they are Responsibility — Business
151%2B6.5 implemented and monitored. Ethics

B BEERRERAMBEBER - ARk
MERETT REEERITE o

EmkRGEE-BFEE

F
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EE i pud =x:0] R
B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : R&E)S
General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and RES
—AH (o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BEANIEFRRE ~ $1R - BGFRERER -
(@ BEK: &
(o) ETFHBEITABEATZENERE
ESFN]
HERL o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption
RSRAE regarding corrupt practices brought RES
FH1ZB7.1 against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAAHZETASHEERLETE
FBRENESHAREREE RFDRER -
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures, how | Anti-corruption
RASRAE L they are implemented and monitored. RES
FE1EBT.2 Ha B €05 b S R IRAR T - AR
TMEERTTE -
KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption
RASRIE K provided to directors and staff. RES
151EB7.3 HamERKE T RENRESEI -

B8: Community Investment

B8 : @I E

General Policies on community engagement Community Investment
Disclosure | to understand the needs of the HERE
— R R communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

BN ESER T REEMEMLES

TR EESZESHEEBTENEL

SR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment
RABEAE R education, environmental concerns, HEREE
¥E1ZB8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).

HrEREBE(NHE - BREF BT

B RE XL #E)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Community Investment
RASRIE K time) to the focus area. HEEE
¥51EB8.2 EHTHREAEAER(NE EERE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R E

@ pakertilly
R [ PR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS International (Holdings) Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 94 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A B

FRENSR

RERMNEXHE - TEFFFEAR/RFY
ARG EMBRRENREZNER - ZFF
HRAERMHEGA VB RRETEANEER
ATRE - WHEFEER - MERAIL X
FERRBUEHER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit ~ ¥ EE;HE BPRESHEENA L
Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables EYERRFENEEREE

Refer to notes 2.9(), 2.11, 15 and 28(a) of the consolidated financial statements BRI R B RZRNZ29) 211 15R28(3)

The Group recognised loans and interest  Our audit procedures in this area included: EEERGANERE RNELAENSEFEE:
receivables recorded initially at fair value RERNSUATE

and subsequently at amortised cost in the ®  obtaining and reviewing a sample of loan 5t & MBS IR SRR ERRZEEFTHEOEA

consolidated statement of financial position.
As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount of
the loans receivable and interest receivables
were HK$57,955,000 and HK$1,606,000
respectively.

The measurement of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration
in credit quality, and assumptions used in the
ECL model such as the probabilities of default,
loss given default, expected future cash flows
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of the aggregated
amount of loans and interest receivables
(representing approximately 20% of total
assets) and inherent uncertainty in such
estimates, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

agreements (including supplemental
agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the
principal amounts, interest rates, maturity
dates and other information to the
Group’s accounting records;

testing of controls designed and
applied in the process of approving and
granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

assessing the effectiveness of key controls
over the application of the impairment
methodology and the governance for the
ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models, inputs, assumptions
and the Group’s criteria for assessing if
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, default or credit-impaired, and
5o allowances for financial assets should
be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and
the qualitative assessment;

recalculation of loan interest income
recognised on a sample basis;

obtaining direct confirmations of loan
balances from the borrowers on a sample
basis; and

reviewing subsequent settlement records
and corroborating enquiries with the
management about the reasons for
not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

TECEBERKA
B RZZEZZFXA
=tR ERERRE
WFEMERES R
£ 57,955,000 % 1T &
1,608,000/ T ©

BHEEBR(EAR
HEER]) ZHERRE
REAHE - BEZ5
EEERBEERL LA
B REREEEER
AMERZERR W&
Mzt BOBR
X BEMARAERE
RAEEBEERE -

MR EREF RS2
BEBERA(GREED
20%) RAFEErTAE
ITHEETHBRE &
AFARAFRRIER
BEZ R

(IR S REHER
#(0E)) TFAE EX
Bestagpnie® 7
X HMARAMER

Uit RRLERNBRT
FraRat BB R AR E TR
A HRERETMRERILT

HEH

oF i B BB < R St 12
il BREEEREAZE
A BRERGERAEER
BEEARZEABBRR
BB

qfh EEEBYEER
BEA - 8AEE B
L EEETHEERERR
BEZEM  BORBLR
ERE BESREERE
RAERKABSEEEE
HEASRTITEENZ
BB

EREEESHFHEEHR
WERHBBA

RREEEERERETA
WERER R

BEHRMEE DS - Y[
EEEARER TR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BREMEETREMBHRRNER

BB RERGEMBRRERBRE IR
RREF AR M B EXERBLESS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 September 2022
Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number: P06231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE T - —FXA=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E51I7R )

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
st FET FET
Revenue g 3
— Service income from environmental —IRB OB R Z RIS
and cleaning 360,397 342,702
— Interest income from money lending — EER 2 FBIRA 9,939 12,073
370,336 354,775
Cost of services BRAG R AR (335,978) (322,480)
Gross profit EF 34,358 32,295
Other income, other gains and other EAUA - Efth e R E A &R
losses and impairments LA BB 4 2,653 17,189
Selling and marketing expenses HE REHEAX (2,514) (2,985)
Administrative expenses THFX (21,679) (24,188)
Finance costs BhE AN 5(a) (1,017) (1,464)
Profit before taxation RRBEAT R R 5 11,801 20,847
Income tax expense FiefiA= 6 (888) (167)
Profit for the year FRER 10,913 20,680
Attributable to: AT AL HEG
— owners of the Company B VNEIL 2PN 10,677 19,192
- non-controlling interests — IR 236 1,488
10,913 20,680
HK cents HK cents
AL (il
Earnings per share BRER 9
— Basic and diluted —HEAREE 3.55

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
neRBERAMEEKRGER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE - - —FXA=1THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

2022

—EC-_F

Notes HK$’000
BtEE FExT

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income,

net of nil tax

[tems that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:

— Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations

— Exchange differences released upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

FREF
Hip2EUWE - MREBIE

HIRRIge B0 EBR 2
ER= I
—BREBINEBIM BRI ER
ZH

— i RNERRRER
M ERE

Total comprehensive income FRAEZEKREE
for the year

Attributable to: T AL :

— owners of the Company —RNRBHEB A

- non-controlling interests — IR

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EEHERBRAR Gk 2022

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FHET

20,680

943

922

22,545

21,057

1,488

22,545
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

As at 30 June 2022 A =E==F"A=1+H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E51I7R )

Notes
BaE

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B MR 10
Right-of-use assets FREEE 11
Goodwill [GES 12
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITIF SR 17
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BB
Trade receivables H 5 IR 13
Deposits, prepayments and other e - FENFRIEREAERGRIE

receivables 14
Loans and interest receivables EUWER R FE 15
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFABZZEMEE

profit or loss 16
Restricted bank deposits IR HISRITIE TR 17
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 17
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade payables B S IR 18
Accruals, deposits received and other st EA - oiiR e RE M IER

payables FIH 19
Amount due to a director BN —REERIEAE 20
Bank loans IRITEN 21
Lease liabilities HEBE 22
Bond &% 23
Current tax payable FERTRNERTR TE 24(a)
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE
Non-current liabilities ERBEMB
Lease liabilities HEBE 22
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE 24(p)
NET ASSETS EEFE
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2022
—E-_F
HK$’000
FET

64,880
2,008

278
67,166
370
82,864

7,001
59,561

34
292
74,480

224,602

19,364

34,617

21,369
1,615

442
77,407

147,195

214,361

449
574

1,023

213,338

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET

60,188
2,692
2,932
570
66,382
322

70,393

4,094
79,534

1,140
72,494

227,977

14,922
35,754
4,171
22,397
1,316
9,938
1,137
89,635
138,342
204,724
1,403
581
1,984

202,740



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBIRR R

As at 30 June 2022 A=—ZE-——F,XxA=+H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
MI5E FET Fi&T

Capital and reserves ERRf#E 27
Share capital &N 5,400 5,400
Reserves e 204,301 193,939

Total equity attributable to owners of AR THEE AE(LERBEE
the Company 209,701 199,339
Non-controlling interests FEFERRRE RS 3,637 3,401

TOTAL EQUITY B 213,338 202,740

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZEZ—_FHLAZ+ N \BESE=SFSHELK

28 September 2022. HETIES o
Yu Shaoheng Lai Tin Ming RBT BRHA
Director Director FF =

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&EFTHMIsT#E R I SHix & BB HRERE — 20 ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE =T - —F A=+ HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E51I7R )

Attributable to owners of the Company

YN 2PN
The PRC Non-
Share Other  Confrbuion  Exchange  statutory Accumulated controling
Sharecapital ~ premium  reserve suplis — reseve  resenve losses Totd  interests Total
HEEE JEiER
BE ROEE HbRE SARS  ERGE HE  ZiEE a5t fEa a5t
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Thr TExr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn
note27  (ote27  (ote27  (ote27  (ote 27
(ol (ol (o)) )] (bliv)
(r O (W3 Bzt Bzt
00 20 20 200 276
At1 July 2020 R=B-E%tA-H 5400 198,524 1,000 21,400 (823) - {47219 178282 1913 180,195
Changes in equity for 2021: RIEZ-FEHEE
Profit for the year ERgHl - - - - - - 19192 1919 1488 20,680
Exchange differences on translation 8GN EBBEHR 2
offinancial statements of foreign~~~ EREE » MRTHE
operations, net of nil tax - - - - 943 - - 943 - 943
Exchange differences released HE-ERELARER
upon deregistration of a LEREE
subsidlry, net of nil tax THE - - - - 922 - - 922 - 92
Total comprehensive income EmzEbaes
for the year - - - - 1,860 - 19,192 21,067 1,488 22,545
Appropriation o the PRC statutory AR EFPEAE&E
reserve - - - - - 224 (224) - - -
At 30 June 2021 R-B--ERA=1H 5400 198,524 1,000 21,400 1,042 24 (28251) 199,339 3401 202,740
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE - - —FXA=1THILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDFER AR
The PRC Non-
Share Share Other Confribution ~ Exchange  statutory Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve suplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
TEEE FER

RE  RHEE AfEE  HARR  EXGG i EiFB it Ex &3t
HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér TR TAn  TErn  TEr  TEm  fAn  TEn  TER T

(note27  (note27  (note27  (note27  (note 27

) ) 17 1) )

(Mt (Mt (ht i (hs

b)) b)) 270E) b)) 27b))

At1 July 2021 R-R-£t8-R 198,524 (28251) 199,339
Changes in equity for 2022: R-B--ERREE:
Proft fo the year Emgr 10677
Bxchange diferences on ranston ~~ BEENEREERR 2
of financial statements of foreign EXZE MESHAE
operations, net of nl tax (315)
Total comprehensive income ERREYHAE
for the year 10,677 10,362 236

Appropriation to the PRC statutory PREE RS
reserve (329)

At 30 June 2022 W-BZZ£5AZ1H 5400 198,524 1,000 (17,908 209,701 3637

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — F&FIFT TR I 4R & BTG Rz — 205 -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

" _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE T - —FXA=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E51I7R )

Notes
B &E

Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation BB AR
Adjustments for: FAEATEIE
— Interest income from money lending —REEE 2 F EWA 3
- Bank interest income —RITFIEHA 4
— Exchange differences released upon — RN BARERER 2

deregistration of a subsidiary b H 4
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —HEME  BEREREWZ

equipment 4
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEHB AR 4
— Impairment loss on goodwiil —BEREEE 4
— Impairment loss on loans and interest —ERER LB RIERE

receivables 4
- Net realised (gain)/loss on financial assets —1Z A EFABRZ S REE

at fair value through profit or loss ZEERE) EEFE 4
— Net unrealised loss on financial assets at ~ —IZA TV EABRZ S RIEE

fair value through profit or loss L ARBEEBIEFE 4
— Revaluation gain on property, plant and —W% - WEMEEER R

equipment 4
- Finance costs —BENAE 5(a)
— Depreciation of property, plant and —E¥ - BERREITE

equipment 5(c)
— Depreciation of right-of-use asset —(FREEENE 5(c)
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment  — 12 « BRE K 55 45 3 8 5(c)
— Net foreign exchange gain — SNBSS FER
Operating profit before changes in EELESBBH 2 KEHR

working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUEmMm), R
Increase in trade receivables B S W GRIEIE N
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, %& ~ AN FUE R H A e EIE
prepayments and other receivables ($hn),/

Decrease/(increase) in loans and interest
receivables

Decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

(Decrease)/increase in amount due to
a director

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits
received and other payables

FEME R B A SR,/ (1)

BATEG AR SREE
it~ REEREGRL),/ 0
S AFORE N, (A

FEFHER - ElIRE MEMER
FIECEL),/ K

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest received from money lending

EEMEL (A REFE

BEWRERS 2 F8

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREENEH
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERPBREMEH
Net cash generated from operating RETBRELRSEE

activities
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2022
—m——

—_— — —

HK$’000
TET

11,801

(9,939)
(127)

(1)

2,932

1,549
(30)
9

(5,090)
1,017

3,414
1,888

5
(1,259)
6,169

(48)
(12,290)

(2,872)
19,083
(13)

(4,275)
4,438

(1,225)

8,967
9,939

(1,234)
(265)

17,407

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FET
20,847

(12,073)
(124)

922

(3,264)
1,464

3,151
2,100
290
(1,211)
22,026

180
(16,312)

5,063
(20,335)
(801)

4,190
(608)

4,497

(2,100)
12,073

(1,696)
(158)

8,119



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

" _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE - - —FXA=1THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

Investing activities

Interest received

Decrease in restricted bank deposits

Payment for purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries

2022
—EC-CHF
Notes HK$’000
i FTEx
REEE
EUCHLE 127

RRHRITEFORD
BEYME - BFEMREX AR

1,140

(3,034)

HEME - BE M&EHMEFA

HEME A RIMRSIRAFR

Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (A FEERE

investing activities R (1,762)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERNEERHENERDS (1,859)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSHMEEHD (143)
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (1,028)
Repayment of bond BERES (10,000)
Interest paid BEAFE (812)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETE AR FE (13,842)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEYIENTEE

equivalents 1,803
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REFANEEREESEEY

of the year 72,494
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MNESEZB B 183
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERNBEERESEEY

the year

74,480

* The total cash consideration was HK$2.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

o RRSRER2ET -

EEHERBRAR Gk 2022

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FAT

124
3,577

(1,333)

2,368

(2,105)

(80)
(1,004)
(1,244)

(4,433)
6,054
65,485

955

72,494

BEMIP A U TR A MR — B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

COMPANY INFORMATION

PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled
in the Cayman lIslands and its shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 17 June 2013.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Office A, 12/F., Tower A,
Capital Tower, No. 38 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Statement of compliance (continued)

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) and the interests in leasehold land and
buildings are stated at their fair values (see notes 2.6 and 2.7
respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 33.

2 FEETEHRGE)

2.1

2.2

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022

B IS (R)

REBE RN T ESFTBORB N
—F o

REURA WS MERMER 2 E %
BIE S RAREE - IR A TERT AR
H((BAFEFABRDZEREE
UERAE T REFERIEEATE
FIRR (DRI R I5E2.6%2.7) °

AT BB BN B HRELERNERER
Bk BEEEEEL AL - A5
KRR - MFHIE - AEt RRERE
TEBRNERAR - UWREE - 86 -
WABERSN 2R o IFHA R
HEABRRIABEER IR REEH
BATEAENZEEMRARSE
- BREGEREKAMEEMEAR
RS A E E K& B EREEFD
HIE R R ERE - BRRAERABEARIR
ZEET o

Et RARBRR S HERE - MEst
BEHERT R P EFLERIET A
A - AlgtAsHER] @B EARA
HERR - AW RTHE B S R SRR

FE AL ARBER MM

K AR REARRIHERR ©

BIEERAR M HREERNSFI{E
U AMBBRAEATE 2 A -
AREFTARERNEERER - &
FEPRES3A A A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXES:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies

24

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective in the current accounting period of the
Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concession beyond 30 June
2021

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 34).

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

2.4 ME DB RIFERER ()

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.9(ii)).

IR IR W IF AR R AR A&
PGB AR 2 #Eas - NGB &
FLIE B Z SR R 15 A A B 5E (AR BSN
R - MEEHAKEREENNTS
CREBEEZEAAERNEE -
IEREBAHME - ARERDEE
WA ESHERE S A E AR
Al BB E A 2 IRt E I A IRE
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FEER s 2 5 NER B ISR R
ZHEEA - EARREEA ARG R
DHEY - NRBEEED 2 IR g
@RI EBER MRS ERR
Hit2EWSEE - FRFRm e
BRI RS
RARBEHERAZBZ O

EAREERCE BB QR 2R
& ARhEZMB AR Z B #ER
ABR - MATELZ BERERNER
R e

PHE AR 2 IERARNE Z ik
MR AR R EEEHER(R
BEEE2.9(0i) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.9(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment
and are initially stated at fair value while transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. The explanation of how the
Group determines the fair value of financial assets is set out in
note 28(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are
subsequently recognised in profit or loss if the investments do
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 Y% - BRERRZE

Interests in leasehold land and buildings, where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest, held for own
use are stated at its revalued amount, being its fair value at
the date of the revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.9(ii)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in
equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only exceptions
are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately
prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged
to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation reserve to
accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the term of lease

Furniture and fixtures 3to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 310 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvements Over the term of lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Leased assets (continued)

28 HEEXEE(E)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases,
the Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in consideration
as negative variable lease payments in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2 FEETEHRGE)

(CONTINUED)

2.8 Leased assets (continued) 28 HEEE(A)
The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised REEEMMRERNERAEEEYD
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount SRR - BEAESENYS
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or SR EFEFA B Hisk 2 BIE B9 (E
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs AMEENR - AREENEAVIFE
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets B - REABERAT  RAEEE
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove KR TN 5 IR bR R R BRI B E ok
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the ERBEEENZEEMTIMES
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, RIfHETANAR » 2K AZBRIREHIRE
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is WHIFR MU EEE - E AR
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and BERREKANRZITE LR EE
impairment losses (see note 2.9(i). Depreciation is calculated B5IBR (R 5E2.9(0)) ° Bt =£2.7 Ff
to write off the cost of right-of-use assets using the straight line & EDIRESENHRSNEERN
method over the lease term or where it was likely the Group A A ER (N A E A S B E M
would obtain ownership of the assets, the life of the assets, as F /G 1 ) PO 85 {8 R 48 & EE VR AN AT
set out in note 2.7. Ho

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets 29 EEBEREERE

(i) Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including trade and other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents). Financial assets
measured at FVPL are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive), discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial asset assessed at the end of the reporting period
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held). The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.20(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

2 FEETEHRGE)

29 FEERREEREH)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets (continued) () ZHEEZEEES(E)
Write-off policy MBI
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written M TEEAE BR A AT Y (=l 308 -
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no REEeME (BB 2
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case BEECRMER - ZIBARA
when the Group determines that the debtor does not BERAEEETEBALEA]
have assets or sources of income that could generate EEREREME 2EENK
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the AR AE R ZE T 88 2 I8
write-off. IR o
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously S RIHIGE v B EE R ERE -
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in RAITE U I HAE RN IE s R FERR A
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs. JRERED o

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EbIEmEEERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

K& RS HRFFAEL K IME
BRXR - LNBEREEETR
BRATEE(EERIN A6
HIRE - 32 ATRERR BV R (E
ERITBFELAEDRRD

- Y% BEMEE:

- right-of-use assets; — [FRAREE:
- goodwill; and - BB R
- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s — ARAMBRAKRAZR

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Inventories

211

Inventories, which represent consumable goods, are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted to
borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2.9())).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

212 EZ R EMEKRIR

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2.9())).

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.9(j).

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.

2.15 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
note 2.22).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Employee benefits

0]

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the retirement
benefit scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)

(CONTINUED)
2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

216 EEREF (&)
(i) RAEUERIFEN 2 RRIRE

(i) Long service payments payable on cessation of

(iii)

employment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the long service
payment payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits have already been vested.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company.

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Trinomial
Option Pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.

The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXES:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Income tax 217 FiB8H

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Income tax (continued)

217 FriS®i (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXES:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Income tax (continued)

217 FriS% ()

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

2.18 Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially stated at fair value
(being the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) as deferred income. Thereafter, the
amount of the guarantee is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Financial guarantees issued (continued)

218 R EMBHRREH)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when
ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in deferred income in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in
note 2.9(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

2.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue and other income

124

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and money lending in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

(i) Provision of environmental and cleaning services

Service income received or receivable from customers
when the environment and cleaning service contracts,
which relate to routine environmental and cleaning
services, are entered into, is recognised over time in
proportion to the stage of completion of the service
contract as the work is performed.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.9(i)).

(iij) Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue and other income (continued)

220 Wrss R HAU A (48)

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as other income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by the way of reduced depreciation expense.

2.21 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognise such non-monetary assets and liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantive period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.23 Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (j).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)
A /1
(e \/ 128
(e N
'/y%r‘\ '\‘\/
!(f ’ﬂ" sw' o
RIS 1 N

Revenue

Revenue represents the service income from the provision
of environmental and cleaning services and interest income
earned from the money lending business as follows:

2 FEETEHRGE)

2.24 D EIRE

REDBRFEMBRRARES D
MEEZERE  DRERAEETE
=ARITIE R E T MRt 2 BRI
SERAEEB LD ER - LT
HERBHBER -

ERERZBED BTG R BERE
Brmast - BRIFAED EEAAU
BB - R AFBELLZ R
B BEPRISER - REHRS
% UREBERIRME - @RIFFEX
ZREDEMET A LR 2 SRR

it o

3 WRksHHRE

(a)

Wz

W BRI IR IR B2 RIS P15 AR
WA B B PUE 75 R ER B I S U A 7R
T

Revenue within the scope of BERMBHREENEISHKFF
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts & |EE R < W
with Customers”

Service income from environmental and &35 &EZRIEWA
cleaning

Revenue from other sources HAth R 2 W2

MENBHA

Interest income from money lending

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
360,397 342,702
9,939 12,073
370,336 354,775

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121(a) of HKFRS 15 to its revenue from provision of
environmental and cleaning services for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts as these contracts had an original expected duration
of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHESHHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (b) DEWE

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, which
are used to make strategic decisions including resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

Environmental and Provision of environmental and
cleaning cleaning services in Hong Kong
and the PRC
Money lending Provision of money lending
business in Hong Kong and
the PRC

Investments Investments in financial assets

The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes central
administrative and other costs including directors’ emoluments,
other operating expenses and finance costs.

REEIRE T BEERKEBIEHE
BRORKR (BREERDE LD BERR
i) 2 BRMEEEREEDE ©

BN EEG R RER KRS - A7
FEBRBBEMER - BD T ESR
BHE - EREAKENAIHE DA
B - EREEREE L AR
LENHRE - AEEZAIHRED B

ZEBHRn T

RENEE REBRBEREMH

BRIENBRRE
MRE REENHENE
e
wE RETHMEE

ITERRERREENARED XS
Mt EFHEEEDENRIR - ZFHE
HENBEFRRITHEEMRA(E
REEHe  HtLERMXNEBEK
) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W&EkoyHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) AEHE(K)
Segment assets mainly exclude corporate assets, property, NEEEFETRIESETERNAR
plant and equipment and cash and cash equivalents that are BE  WME - BEAREAEBRER
managed on a central basis. Goodwill is allocated to reportable REEEY BAESETAIHRES
segments. & o
Segment liabilities mainly exclude corporate liabilities, bank DEBEFENRRELAFEAE - R1T
loans and bond. BHRES -
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () ZEf¥E BEREE
2022
ZECCE
Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Total
REREZ RE HE i) st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn T T

Reportable segment revenue from EREEBRINRENDEEN

external customers recognised by AREIPhE

over time 360,397 370,336
Reportable segment profit TREL PR 11,678 14,820
Unallocated corporate expense FAOMCERR
Other income, other gains and other losses — EMMA - EtMEREHEBRN R

and impaiments e
Central administrative costs BRI
Finance costs BARR
Profit before taxation Skl
Other segment information A HER
Impaiment oss on goocwil BERESE
Impairment loss on loans and interest BYEZ RS HESE

recelvables
Nt realised gain on financiel assets at FVPL B ATEF NBH 24 BEEZEED

Y%
Net unrealised loss on financiel assets at FVPL A TFEAERZ S REEZAER
EETE 9

Revaluation gain on property, plant and 0% BRREEERNE

equipment (5,090) (5,090)
Depreciation of iER
- property, plant and equipment -%  BEREE 1928 3414
- right-of-use asses i i = 1,888
Interest on lease liabilties HEARHS = 143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHESHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EEwE (&)

() DERE BERAREE)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

2021
“E-o-E
Environmental Money
andcleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Totdl
FERER & & AR a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tin TiEn Thr TiEn Thr
Reportable segment revenue from ERSEERNRENTERY
external customers recognised by BECpED
over time 342,702 - 12,078 - 304,775
Reportable segment profit/{loss) AREHTER /(BB 30,446 (808) (2,124) - 27514
Unallocated corporate expense RABLERT
Other income, other gains and other losses — EMMA - EtREREGERN R
and impairments e 2410
Oentral administrative costs RRAHEA (7,699
Finance costs BENAE (1,384
Profit before taxation BBiALER 20,847
Other segment information A A HER
Impairment loss on loans and BYEFRNEHESE
interest receivables - - 9,145 - 9,145
Net realised loss on finencial assets at FVPL - IRATEFAER 2 BEEZCER
BEAE - 801 - - 801
Revaluation gain on property, plant and % BERAGERNG
equipment - - - (3,264) (3,264)
Depreciation of: HE:
- property, plant and equipment -% BEREE 1,344 - - 1,807 3,151
- right-of-use assets -FREEE 1,502 = 598 = 2,100
Interest on lease liabilties HEREHS 70 - 10 - 80
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W&EkoyHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) AEHE(K)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () PEF¥E ZLERERE(E)
2022 2021
- St —Eo-E
Environmental Money Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending Total  and cleaning Investments lending Total
REREE k& & @y BREREZ #3 (e &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fin T Tén Tikn T T Tin
Assets BB
Segment assets PHEE 146,815 144,844 1,194 86,250 232,088
Unallocated comorate assets #AEACEEE 62,071
294,359
Liabilities &f
Segment lebilfes APafE (55,672) (52,602) (1g) 5502) (58,122)
Unallocated corporate AOELEEE
liabilities (33.497)
(91,619)
Other segment information H{t2H&#
Adattions to segment TES RS
non-current assets BE 4434 - 464 4,808
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHESHHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EEwE (&)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) HEEHRFEEF
The following table sets out information about the TREF A ()R E 2R B B
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from B ZWE RNV ER 2 % -
external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant and MELEE  FREEERDE
equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill (“specified B([fEEIRBEE] T
non-current assets”). The geographical location of the @2 &R - IEEERBEEM
specified non-current assets is based on the physical i[RI EE BT EM R (5t
location of the assets, in case of property, plant and ME - - BELREMERAESE
equipment and right-of-use assets and the location of the EME)  UWREEMTHE
operation to which they are allocated, in case of goodwill. (EEmME)ES -
Revenue from Specified non-current
external customers assets
REIBEE 2 Wi EBEFRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —F —EC_F —E -5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER T FHERT FAT
Hong Kong 5B 344,745 316,682 61,761
The PRC F 25,591 38,093 4,051
370,336 354,775 65,812
During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no HE_Z-_ kT —
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the NA=ZTHIEFE  BEER
Group’s revenue. RHEREEWZFBIB10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

4 OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND OTHER 4 HilgA - Hittlhsm R EtmEHE

LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENTS LR E{E
2022 2021
—ZE_-— —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Other income Higle A
Bank interest income IRITFBHA 124
Government grants IE4ISE ) 24,528
Sundry income IR A 119
24,771
Other gains Hitbz
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BE MR BEKE
equipment -
Revaluation gain on property, plant and Y% - BE REREEHRE
equipment 3,264
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 22
3,286
Other losses and impairments HivEE RRE
Impairment loss on goodwill P RER A (2,932) -
Impairment loss on loans and interest FEWER R B EEE
receivables (1,549) (9,145)
Exchange differences released upon I RENB R AR R
deregistration of a subsidiary N =58 (922)
Net realised gain/(loss) on financial BATEFABGZeRMEEY
assets at FVPL BEBEs(F58)F5E 30 ®01)
Net unrealised loss on financial assets BATEF AR eRMEE L
at FVPL REIE EIEF ) -
(4,460) (10,868)
2,653 17,189

FA - AEERKI BB RTTIREBUT R
VYHMERSREEFEPHRFESIH
1,648,0007%8 7t (= ZF = — 4 : 24,528,000/
o) c ZEESCHARRALEREBVEX
B URBA SR ERNES - RIEBEFBIK
FoAEBERNFERETEREYBRMEES
AR MRANEENMEETE -

During the year, the Group successfully applied for funding support
of HK$1,648,000 (2021: HK$24,528,000) from the Employment
Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund set up by the
Government from Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The
purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to enterprises
to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding
on paying wages to the approved list of the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5 BRBLANEA
BBATEFE MR, (GIA) THIEH :

(@) Finance costs: (a) BB :
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Effective interest on bond (note 23) BEH 2 BB 2 (FzE23) 840
Interest on bank loans RITERZFIE 544
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGBZHE 80
1,464
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments (b) EIRK(BEEEHMH
(note 7)): (FsE7)) -
2022 2021
—E_— —E -5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMEF 196,352 192,937
Contributions to defined contribution TE R RGRIRET S8 itk
retirement plan 7,166 6,324
Provision for long service payments REIRG S #E 544 643
204,062 199,904
(c) Other items: (c) HAEH :
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Auditor’s remuneration 2 B4R 7 B 725
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 7,705
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WENEETE
equipment 8,151
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,100
Expense relating to short-term leases A SRR 2,014
Net foreign exchange gain SNEY R F R (1,125)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #1% ~ BB N & s 290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 &HZ8BEXRTHFAES
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) ZREBFRTPHBIIEE :
loss represents:

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax  EIH#%{E — & R B8

Provision for the year FREE 1,064
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEBTFEREBEEE (15)
1,049
Current tax — PRC Enterprise ENERRITE — PRI EATER
Income Tax
Provision for the year FREE 231
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior B RBAFENEE T, TBE
years B (723)
(492)
Deferred tax credit (note 24(b)) IEAER IEIK &2 (MiEE24(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary iy A R AR IR M O
differences (390)
Income tax expense ISR X 167
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFIE
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended HEZZ-_FA=-tHLFESE
30 June 2022 is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the B RE 0B B IR E AT RRTR
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one FH16.5%( —FE=——F : 16.5% )t
subsidiary which is a qualifying corporation under the two- & B AT - ZMBA
tiered Profits Tax rate regime. AIANEGHMARESEIRTHEE
P NEIR
For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable % [t & 7~ 7 #9 & 2,000,000 4 7T &
profits are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining AR ANIZ825% (T =~ —F ¢
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). 8.25% ) WO E BT - MmeR T 8 JE
R AR 165% ( —ZF = —4F ¢
16.5% ) BV TR R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

REBBERTHAEHR(E)

(a) FEBHERTHBIEE © (F)

loss represents: (continued)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 25% (2021: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively.

At 30 June 2022 and 2021, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be payable on
the unremitted profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the Company is in a position to control the
dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution
of such profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in respective tax jurisdictions.

L EEH

AR B R AR S 2 B B A Rl N B
BRI EBREBR (T —
&F 1 25%)8F -

RETEBE - AKEHENEAR
([FEMEARNE—FENF—A
—HELHENERD KB BEN T
SNRIREE SN BB EMALN AT
HEMGINEEE R D RIRTEE%
H10% RIS -

RZEZ—FR-ZF-—FA=+
B &g ST \F—A—HE
A § AP BB B A ) R B LS R RS A
EERECHEAE  REALRAT
AR R B A R M BBCR MR
HRRWB AR TN A RARRE IR
PEEREF

Rt W E B TEH

RERSHERABEBARAS (R
BEBARES DRAURES - AEE
BERE B AR A RS
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SZEEZXPHFAEH(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) REABRTENAMEHAXHE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: EIOEFIWEER
2022 2021
—E-C—F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T F#T
Profit before taxation FRA A5 A 11,801 20,847
Notional tax expense on profit before BREADEA M BRIBRY -
taxation at Hong Kong statutory tax rate  3R&B/ATE MR HE 1,947 3,439
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR BRA TR S & (1,127) (4,614)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIHB A M2 843 2,179
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRE AR IAR BN
recognised FE 154
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AL AR T AR IS EIER
previously not recognised M2 (1)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ FIJE A B ANFIF R Hy 7 £ 645
Over-provision in respect of prior years, net A @1 F & MR R B E F 58 (7398)
Tax concession MIGER (897)
Income tax expense FriS B> 167
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEXEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEBE B R EMEFIZE383(1) 1K - AR (KR
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies EEZFMmER)RHIFE2E RGEM LT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation Al EEWEHBNOT :

and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Contributions to
Salaries, allowance and Discretionary defined contribution
Fees benefits in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
ik e RERENEAN BERL ERHFERTHNMER it
2022 2001 2022 2021 2022 2001 2022 2021 2022 2001

“B-CF -Z--% CZE-CF C-E--F CZE-CE O -E--E CECCE CE--F CZBCCE O -Z--E
HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TEn TiEn TER TEn TEn TR TER TiEn

Present directors RiEES
Executive directors #iES
Mr. YuShacheng (Chaiman #8554 (TE#
and Chief Bxecutice Offcer) ~ 778%88) 1,044
. Lai Tin Ming BB 1,264
Independent non-executive  BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Kwong Tz Cing, Jack 712 120
Mr. Meng Enha nBEEE 120
Mr. Wang Cu TkE 120
1,680 3,558
During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no director waived REEZE-—FR-F-—FA=7
or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments were paid by BIEFE  WERESHEXREMRETM
the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join & - REBESEAARRESZERA
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. & - ERIASRIIAZSE B 52E)

KA RBERE(E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 EBEHATL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2021: hEEEHFATH  ME(ZT=—F:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The ME)RESE - HEFRME7HE - B
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2021: HEM=%(ZF=—F : =&) AT8I% B
three) individuals are as follows: WEEMT
2022 2021
—E-CHF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  LEREAMBET 1,295
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 159
Contributions to defined contribution TERBMHFGRIRET EIRI R
retirement plan 57
1,511
The emoluments of the other three (2021: three) individuals with the EEEM=%2("T-_—F : =Z) &5
highest emoluments are within the following band: ATHFIER N N FHE :
2022 2021
—E-CF T
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
HKS$Nil — HK$1,000,000 /87T %1,000,000/ 7T - 3
During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no emoluments RBE_ZT-_GFR-F-—F A="
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest AILFE - ARERERASET MRS
emoluments of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining FHATATEB - EBMA SR INAKRE
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Ry 1 525 Sl fE R RERR R (E -
9 EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXER
The calculation is based on the profit for the year attributable AEDREBEEEFERARAEEA
to owners of the Company of HK$10,677,000 (2021: JEAL & W& F10,677,0008 L ( = F
HK$19,192,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary Z—%F :19,192,000/8 70 ) K B 81T
shares of 540,000,000 (2021: 540,000,000) ordinary shares in 38 A5 DN S5 £0540,000,000/% ( =
issue during the year. T ——4F : 540,000,0004% ) & A% 1E
4o
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREEER
The diluted earnings per share for the years ended 30 June BRARRREBE_ZT__FR=-F
2022 and 2021 is the same as the basic earnings per share Z—FARNA=THLEFEVEEME
as the Company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary FEELRR  WEE_E-_—FX
shares during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021. ZEC—FRAZTHIEFENER

EE RN B REARZNER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% - BMERKE

Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold
buildings  and fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements Total
TiHRET GRAREE REREER RE LB BEXE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEr THER Thx Thx Thx Thx
Cost or valuation RASEE
At 1 July 2020 RZZ-FF
+tA-H 52,400 2,29 13,780 11,963 29 2,09 82,830
Additions AE - 22 1,135 163 13 - 1,333
Revaluation gain Bt 3,264 - - - - - 3,264
Less: elimination of B BEHTELHH
accumulated
depreciation (1,164) - - - - - (1,164)
Written off Hhisa - (1,415) (2,969) - - - (4,384)
Exchange realignment & SR - 5 60 W] 8 - 72
At 30 June 2021 RZB-—F
~NA=TH 54,500 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,09 81,951
Representing b
Cost K - 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,09 27,451
Valuation {EE 54,500 - - - - - 54,500
54,500 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,09 81,951
At 1 July 2021 i S
tA-H 54,500 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,09 81,951
Additions AE - 18 2,149 855 12 - 3,034
Revaluation gain Bt 5,090 - - - - - 5,090
Less: elimination of B BEHTELH
accumulated
depreciation (1,290) - - - - - (1,290)
Written off Hisa - (51) (576) - 9 - (706)
Disposals & - - () - - - (5)
Exchange realignment EH AR - (1) 16 () 3 - 13
At 30 June 2022 i —
~NA=tH 58,300 874 13,590 12,975 252 2,09 88,087
Representing &
Cost KA - 874 18,590 12,975 252 2,096 29,787
Valuation b 58,300 - - - - - 58,300
58,300 874 13,590 12,975 252 2,09 88,087
Accumulated depreciation Z:HHTE
At 1 July 2020 RZZ-ZF
tA-8 - 1,374 10,369 11,475 103 498 23,819
Charge for the year FEYH 1,164 257 1,095 168 86 361 3,151
Elimination on revaluation EftHH (1,164) - - - - - (1,164)
Written off ks - (1,125) (2,969) - - - (4,094)
Exchange realignment B 5 R - 4 41 - 6 - 51
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ¥¥ - BENIRZE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold
buildings  and fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements Total
IHREF BRAREE REREES "B R BEXE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 30 June 2021 and RIBZ-F
1 July 2021 AAZTRR
—Eo-F
tA-8 - 510 8,536 11,663 195 859 21,763
Charge for the year FEIM 1,290 234 1,075 369 85 361 3,414
Elimination on revaluation ity (1,200) - - - - - (1,290)
Written off Hisa - (50) (574) - (7) - (701)
Disposals it - - (1) - - - (1)
Exchange realignment B 5 R - (1) 23 (1) 1 - 22
At 30 June 2022 RZB-—F
~AZ1H - 693 9,059 12,081 204 1,220 23,207
Carrying amount REfE
At 30 June 2022 i
~AZTH 58,300 181 4,531 944 48 876 64,880
At 30 June 2021 RIB_—F
~NAZTH 54,500 39 3,470 462 121 1,237 60,188

The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings, measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, is categorised
into Level 2 fair value measurement within the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than unadjusted quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at 30 June 2022
and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation by Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, and are determined using the
market approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis using market data which
is publicly available. Had they been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying amount would have been HK$63,016,000
(2021: HK$64,180,000).

10 ¥% - BERZE(E)

ZKE@iim&%%EAfE:_i&:%

—FRNAZTHZAFEERERRE
EVEBEBYSEREEGEME
R GFHRERABAEZAERTE
WEZ2ERAFAIEMESEIBERENE
FHRERBELEZ O] E LLE Y
HEEBRERAMEBEAET - MzxEL
h R A F IR AR ZEHITE SR - BIRR
E{E# /63,016,000 70 (=T — —4F :

64,180,000 7T) °

MN-ZB-—F,A=1+H  AEEDIKF
H IR {E A58,300,000/8 TC( — & = —4F :
54,500,000/8 70 ) ) £ R ABF - LAER
BRI AEEMRITRE (Fi21) KA
KB AIR7E (I 5E82(a)) ©

At 30 June 2022, the Group had pledged its land and buildings
with carrying amount of HK$58,300,000 (2021: HK$54,500,000)
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 21) and
performance bonds issued (note 32(a)).

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 11 ERAEEE
HK$’000
FHT

Cost 2%
At 1 July 2020 R_ZE-_ZTF+H—A8 3,273
Additions RE 3,565
Written off G| (3,273
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 KRB —FA=F+AK=ZT=_—F+H—H 3,565
Additions RE 1,225
Written off b6 (795)
Exchange adjustment B 3 % (24)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFA=1H 3,971
Accumulated depreciation ZIHIE
At 1 July 2020 RZIE_ZTFLHA—H 2,047
Charge for the year FESH 2,100
Written off i (3,273)
Exchange adjustments e H (1)
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZBZ—FA=1+AK=ZT=_—F+H—H 873
Charge for the year FEYH 1,888
Written off HEH (795)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 FEE 3)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFA=1H 1,963
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE-—FxA=+H 2,008
At 30 June 2021 RZZE=—F,XA=1H 2,692
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group has obtained right to use certain properties as its office
premises and warehouse through tenancy agreements. The leases

1 EHEEER)

AEBED BB HEE R
%ﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁ#ﬂ#“*%%&ﬁ}*m%ﬂ

BEETY

A Paray
Z25E

run for a period of 2 to 4 years (2021: 2 to 4 years), at the end of MERICEAF (T —5F : 25445 -
which period all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes B IERRNEBEARENER - 2SHE
variable lease payments. WABIEAZAENK -
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows FAGEReRERNFIBEIELE KA
comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$798,000 and HK$2,002,000 EEPHHEERSRES E‘J /798,000 7T
(2021: HK$2,014,000 and HK$2,185,000) in operating and 122,002,000 7T ( =& = —4F :2,014,000
financing activities respectively. AT k2,1 85,000/%7E)
12 GOODWILL 12 58
HK$’000
FET
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021, 1 July 2021 and ﬁé_g_gg‘tﬂ H - —Z-—FxA=+H"
30 June 2022 T FEA-RARZE_FRA=TH 2,932
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE
At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 #_z_gitﬂ A - —&FXA=+AH
rZZEZ—F+A— El
Impairment loss VENIEY g 2,932
At 30 June 2022 RZE__F,A=+H 2,932
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2022 RZEZ=—FXA=1+H -
At 30 June 2021 N\ —FRA=TH 2,932

BERENREELEWRENR

BEDRE TR EBERMEED A
EAKEERAREELEM

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to
country of operation and operating segment as follows:

2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

- 2,932

AEBEFETHERENRN  HiHEH
BB HBRENTR - B @FAEHETT
A

RIENBER -

Environmental and cleaning — the PRC

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently
if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

12 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 12 Eﬁ%(ﬁﬁ)

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the
value-in-use calculation, which includes the discounted cash flows
sourced from the financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period, and the discount rate of approximately
15.2% (2021: 14.3%) that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period
have been extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2021: 2.0%) per
annum growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long term
average growth rate for the market.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the
CGU are as follows:

Budgeted market The values assigned to the assumption
share reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with
the directors’ estimation of the revenue
from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned revenue
growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.

In the view of the economic downturn, the
directors estimate that there is an increase
in difficulty in renewal of the service
contracts of the existing customers in the
CGuU.

Number of service
contracts

The impairment testing resulted in an impairment of HK$2,932,000
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 30 June 2022. The impairment arose in view of the
deterioration in sales level and operating results of the CGU in the
current year.

ERENRESELEVRENR
(%)

ReELBMrREeRNRIEEREE
AESAEE  HPEREREEEER
L MERFHRE M BBEMSRER
BB  MBRIREL15.2%(=F

—%F 1 14.3%) RRBEFHIHH &K
BENHRSELEMFARRZ TS -

RIEEHRRC RS REANDENEEEE
AR EHRERECREPWZEMIEL -
ﬁ_LﬂﬁzﬁﬁFﬁzfﬁima%ﬁ)ﬂ.EZO%
TR F 20%)NFIEREER - %
EREWRBHTIS 2 RETFERE o

AEReELABUZEREERMAZE
ZERRAT

e

IThi% BEMEE 2 EERESA

DEE % BREREEN
HBRFEHRABEFNLE
ERPWRFEZMHA—% -
EZHEAXAFEEN
BN EAAEMNA
BIRKE o

@iﬂﬂ*

MREETT EFM
i EBREELEMR
BEPHREA RN
X o

m o)
or

BENHE  REBEEZT=__FA
—tHLFERAEREERTHERRBRE
2,932,000/ 7T c BETHRAFERE
EEBEMMEEKEREEEEEZFR
g(o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES 13 EZREWIE
2022 2021
—E-C—F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Trade receivables, net of nil loss allowance  Z S EWFIE - HIRZE1ERG 82,864 70,393
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis REERR - RERB (G
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date (or date of RAH UREERE)ZINES
revenue recognition, if earlier), is as follows: JEWFIARER DTN T ¢
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0 - 30 days 0%30H 49,706
31 - 60 days 31£260H 13,777
61 — 90 days 61290H 4,757
Over 90 days B0 H 2,153
70,393
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note BHETEBEEEBR ZE—FFEH
28(a). HRHIFE28(a) ©
14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 14 &% AIREREMERFIE
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Deposits (note (a)) & (@) 2,510
Prepayments TEf 0B 479
Other receivables E At EUGRIA 1,105
4,094
All of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables, BETH£673,0008 (T =—4F :
apart from certain deposits of HK$673,000 (2021: HK$1,531,000), 1,531,000 )40 » ANEE 2 Eize - 78
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one 5008 K Eo At FE WK IB TR BR — F 1A
year. el sk ER AR o
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e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 14 &% A RERHEMGEWRIRIE

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Deposits (a) #&®
The Group has tendered for certain environmental services RZZEZZFA=+H ~x£EBE
contracts and deposited sums of HK$1,240,000 (2021: HIEAE TRERRBEY - WX Hik
HK$925,000) as tender deposits at 30 June 2022. The tender £ 48%81,240,0008 T(ZFE = —F :
deposits are interest-free and recoverable at the end of the 925,000 L) 1E RIRIEZ S - RiF
tender. B ATEE - BRBIRERRATUL
IE] o
15 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 15 EWEREFE
2022 2021
—E-C —E--fF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXRHD FEHD @5 ERES MEHH Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TiEx TER TAT TR TAL

Secured loans by mortgage  JAIRIE{EL B2

BRER 6,500 43 6,543 11,500 104 11,604
Personal guaranteed loans A ZREN 75,009 3,440 78,449 87,028 2,490 89,518
Unsecured loans EERER 22,652 22,652 24,890 56 24,946
104,161 3,483 107,644 123,418 2,650 126,068
Less: Loss alowance o BERE (46,206) (1,877) (48,083) (44,689) (1,845) (46,534)
57,955 1,606 59,561 78,729 805 79,534
Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 6.00% JE WU B FUE F FI 1) F-6.00% 2 24.00%
to 24.00% (2021: 6.00% to 24.00%) per annum and repayable ZEZ—%F : 6.00%%£24.00%) 5T 8
on maturity date under the terms in contractual agreements or WHAEBNE DREGRRIE TR EB
on demand in writing by the Group. The Group seeks to maintain NIREEEREE - REEKEHEKE
strict control over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to BERWE R LA BERFERIES - UEE
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by RUEEERR - APSRELRETEETHE
management. & e
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15 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 15 EBWERKIIE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) ERERD T
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due dates: REOTIRBES DI EHBERE
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-fF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ExHa FEDs @it BEFEH HEEHH izt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n TR TR FET T FEL
Current (not past due) kElE S aii)) 76,408 701 77,109
Less than 1 month past due AL HA—{E A 14 14 2,809 62 2,871
1 to 3 months past due BE-==@A 29 29 - 42 42
More than 12 months aEEAT=AEA
past due 44,201 1,845 46,046 44,201 1,845 46,046
Less: Loss allowance W BEERE (46,2086) (1,877) (48,083) (44,689) (1,845) (46,534)
57,955 1,606 59,561 78,729 805 79,534
The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has EREFEFENEEE=ZLERH
been assessed by reference to historical information about R HELHLE 7 BEERETR -
counterparty default rates. Further details on the Group’s credit FAAKEEEBR 2 E—FFEH
policy are set out in note 28(a). RHIFE28(a) ©
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e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

15 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 15 EBWERKFE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Analysed by credit quality

(b) BREEERIN

Loans receivables thatare EREEREZEY
not credit-impaired &

Current (not past due) HE(RE )

Less than 1 month past due AP HA—{E A

1t0 12 months past due BE-Z=+=f@A

More than 12 months BEEET=EA
past due
Less: Loss alowance B EBRRE

Loans receivables that are =& HEZER
credit-impaired EX%

Current (not past due) ik S i)

Less than 1 month past due  AEALHA—{E A

1 to 12 months past due BE-=+=@A

More than 12 months BERAT @A
past due
Less: Loss alowance W ERRE

16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

2022 2021
e —FF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXRHD FISHD @zt ER#H FlEHn Bt

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TiEx TR TAT TAT

76,408 701 77,109

14 2,809 62 2,87

29 - 42 42

(2,005) (2,037) (488) - (488)
57,955 59,561 78,729 805 79,534
44,201 46,046 44,201 1,845 46,046
(44,201) (46,046) (44,201) (1,845) (46,046)
78,729 805 79,534

16 BAVEFABRZERMEE

2022 2021
—E-—F - —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Listed equity securities at fair value in BATERFE 2 BB ETRA
Hong Kong B -
The fair values of listed equity securities are determined based on ETRAE FH 2 AT ERR S RS
the quoted market closing price available on the Stock Exchange at FRFTER Mm% WM EBEE -

the end of the reporting period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 BRE&RBELZEY - ZRFIBRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FRRHMEREREER
INFORMATION
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits @ JRENREEEBYEIBRHIRITER
comprise cash at banks and on hand: BIERITLFHERS -
2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Deposits with banks IRITER 1,710
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFERS 72,494
74,204
Restricted bank deposits (note) ZRRHRITIF R () (1,710)
Cash and cash equivalents in the AR Z RS R
consolidated statement of financial REFEY
position 72,494
Note: The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks sk : ZERFIBITFEFERRITHEN
as security for due performance under several environmental Re  EREZARTETIRER
service contracts. The restricted bank deposits of HK$278,000 HERMNER o P RARERR
(2021: HK$570,000) that relate to environmental service B—FERIBHNREREEHZ
contacts with expiry date over one year after the end of the SR HI R 1777 51278,0008 7T (=
reporting period are presented as non-current assets. T = —4 : 570,000/ 7T) Y25

RIERBEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 B2 RIBRLZEEY - SR&IE T

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FREREMRESREER (&)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from (b)) THRFFMASERETSMEENE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. E¥E)  BIERERIERSEH - @
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which BEBMEENAGEAERSREL
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the RRBEMEBBRAEEGZEREN
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows BERADEAERMETIMELARESR
from financing activities. EMAEE -

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Bond Total
RITER HEEE &% @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FAT FAT
(note 21) (note 22) (note 23)

(Mizx21) (HizE22) (Bi5¥23)

At 1 July 2020 R-ZE-ZEFtH—H 23,401 1,258 9,798 34,457

Changes from financing cash BERLHREBRE

flows:
Capital element of lease rentals D RFHERELHERE D

paid - (2,105) - (2,105)
Interest element of lease rentals & F &7 & MF| S35

paid - (80) - (80)
Interest paid BERFE (544) - (700) (1,244)
Repayment of bank loans BRIRITER (1,004) - - (1,004)

(1,548) (2,185) (700) (4,433)
Exchange adjustments EHRE - 1 - 1
Other changes: Hiti g5
Effective interest on bond EH 2 BB E (HiF23)

(note 23) - - 840 840
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) SR (FiiEE5()) 544 80 = 624
New lease entered EIHE - 3,565 - 3,565

544 3,645 840 5,029
At 30 June 2021 and R-B=-—-§XA=+H
1 July 2021 r=EB=-—-%+H—H 22,397 2,719 9,938 35,054
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 BRE&RBELZEY - ZRFIBRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW ERREMESHREBEN (E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b) (continued) o) (&)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Bond Total
RITER HESE &% #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHIT FAL FAL FHL
(note 21) (note 22) (note 23)

(Fff&E21) (Fff&E22) (HfE23)

Changes from financing cash BIEHREHREZE !

flows:

Capital element of lease rentals A EREHERE D

paid - (1,859) - (1,859)
Interest element of lease rentals 2RSSR ELD

paid - (143) - (143)
Interest paid [SANENESS (520) - (292) (812)
Repayment of bank loans BEIFITER (1,028) - - (1,028)
Repayment of bond BEES - - (10,000) (10,000)

(1,548) (2,002) (10,292) (13,842)
Exchange adjustments EHRE - (21) - (1)
Other changes: Hitrg 5
Effective interest on bond EH < BBREFE (FFE23)

(note 23) - - 354 354
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) F B (FFE5(0) 520 143 - 663
New lease entered HMAIHE - 1,225 - 1,225

520 1,368 354 2,242
At 30 June 2022 MRZBEZZFXA=1H 21,369 2,064 - 23,433
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18 TRADE PAYABLES 18 BEFZERIA

2022 2021

—E_-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHT

Trade payables S FRIE m 14,922
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HEREHR  ZEZAH2NNESE

payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FIBRRR AT

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

0 - 30 days 0%30H 14,695

31 - 60 days 31£260H 185

61 — 90 days 61290H 19

Over 90 days im0 H 23

14,922

19 ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 19 EFEHR - EWiZEREMEN

PAYABLES MIE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAET
Accrued salaries EaE xa 15,988
Provision for long service payments RERTE &R 4,389
Provision for untaken leave RIZEUE TR AR S 4,500
Provision for claims REEHE 4,592
Other accruals EftbfERT &R 4,994
Deposits received Biize 496
Other payables HE e EIR 795
35,754
20 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 20 ER—REENE
The amount due to Mr. Yu Shaoheng was unsecured, interest-free R RETREZHIEAEER - 28K
and repayable on demand. BERKEE -
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21 BANK LOANS 21 SRITEXN
The bank loans are repayable on demand and the maturity of bank IRTERAREKER - REERBEM
loans, based on the schedule payment dates set out in the loan BoRTEIN AR - RITERCEIEIE
agreements, is as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year —FR 1,028
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 1,053
After 2 years but within 5 years WEBBREFEN 3,311
More than 5 years RFLAE 17,005
22,397
Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note REE 2 M XRER BN RE28(c)
28(c).
The bank loans were secured by the Group’s land and buildings ERITE T LA &£ B BR T & 458,300,000
with a carrying amount of HK$58,300,000 (2021: HK$54,500,000) BT (ZZE = —4 1 54,500,000787C) 2+
and corporate guarantees from the Company and a subsidiary. o MIEF AR AR T R —E M B R EFTE
2 REEREESR o
22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEAE
At 30 June 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZZT-_—FA=+H EEEHEES
ET
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 1 year —FR 1,316
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBBREN 998
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEBRFA 405
2,719
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23 BOND 23 &%
On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate RZE—NF+—AZ+8 ' KREET
bond at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which is unsecured, 7N %8 410,000,000 TR FE LT A EE
bears a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable %5 ZEFREER  REEFNET%
by the Company after 7 years from the issue date at its principal FPE MBEBTHEREFETHART
amount of HK$10,000,000. The unlisted corporate bond was repaid R E R4 5810,000,0008 o B & & - &
in full during the year ended 30 June 2022. EERCCHERNA=THIEFE - REW

NAIBEHFOBEERE -

The movement of the unlisted corporate bond is set out as below: ELEMAREHZEEHFHINAT -
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
At beginning of the year ] 9,938 9,798
Effective interest expense ERFEAX 354 840
Interest paid BFE (292) (700)
Repayment B (10,000) -
At end of the year RER 9,938
The effective interest rate of the unlisted corporate bond is 8.52% FELTREESFZERFFIEEH8.52%
(2021: 8.52%) per annum. —E-—F :1852%) °
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 REUBMRRRAMNEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) FEMBARREKMEAHIEL :
financial position presents:

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEREH
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) FNEE (M) (1,207) (1,064)
Balance of profits tax provision relating to 381k 4 E FI ST B 45 4
prior years 765 -
(442) (1,064)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIREMEH
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) FEE (FiEE6() (208) (231)
Provisional tax paid BT E 208 158
(73)
(1,137)
Represented by: 15
Current tax payable FE BN EATR I8
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEH (1,064)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EEFTSH (73)
(1,137)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 HZ&8BBRAFZANNAESR (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (b) ERRIELEFEEE
The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in FRREGRE BRI R P RERLIEL
the consolidated statement of financial position and the BB EHEMKE D REFIT -

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of Other
the related temporary
depreciation differences Total
BHARRTEMN HAt B e
wERE =5 st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TET
At 1 July 2020 RZZZTF+HA—H 401 518 919
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a)) st AE (FI3E6(@) 32 (358) (390)
Exchange realignment M R - 52 52
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZEZ—F,A=1+H
k=—E-—%+A—H 369 212 581
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss nga/ GrA)B&

(note 6(a)) (f7E6(a)) 134 (135) (1)
Exchange realignment B N S EE - ©) ©)
At 30 June 2022 WZEZZFXA=1H 508 71 574

(c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised (c) RERELBIREE QE
At 30 June 2022, the Group has not recognised deferred tax R-ZFZZFRNA=1TH @K
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately TRAHERGFAERIEETA
HK$5,721,000 (2021: HK$6,821,000) as it is not probable that Al RE A R R B ER B 7 Al B0 3 &
future taxable profits, against which the assets can be utilised, E - BRARBUESLRAREARS
will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of the #8#75,721,0008 L (ZF = —F -
total tax losses, HK$563,000 (2021: HK$NI) will expire within 6,821,000/ 7T ) ERIELE IR A
5 years under the current tax legislation. Other unrecognised PHIAE EARRE T » 563,000/87T(=
temporary differences are not material. To—F TET)BRBRITVA
RAFAERM - B RERL =
WAENKX °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

25 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain
subsidiaries of the Group and the eligible employees are each
required to make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of HK$7,166,000 (2021: HK$6,324,000) for the year ended
30 June 2022 represents contributions payable to these plans by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

At 30 June 2022 and 2021, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under the
Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on termination
of their employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments when the termination meets the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not
covered by the aforesaid MPF Scheme. At 30 June 2022, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon do not exceed the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met. Consequently,
provision for long service payment of HK$4,680,000 (2021:
HK$4,389,000) is resulted and included in accruals as disclosed in
note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 UBEZELURHAERNARR

TRANSACTIONS

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the board of directors and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (i) the average of
the closing prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (jii) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Persons
concerned for such period as determined by the board of directors,
being a date not later than ten business days after the offer date
by which the Eligible Persons must accept the offer or be deemed
to have declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the board of directors to the grantee which the board of directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer
(subject to the provisions for early termination in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme).

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the
board of directors.

2

ZAYNCIRCRCSE S VAR S g B i IR
BEtEl]) - EERS - BERERHEE
BALERREERNEEFLERNEER
ATRERBHEEUALEEZEZALD
BRVE—PRAANEEN M - BBAERT
ERN—_T—=FRA-T/\BERH I
BB RS T FRER - HRBIE
AR R L ERE - B ERES S
FHARONBRET S - BRET K
FRXAERAE M BT T RN RE
2 o

BEETENAGERALREES  &A
AR B B H AR B L B R A E AT E
AL RERALD »

BRENRBEHESSETNER -
YWELPERBATEETHNERRE @ ()N
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BRTE ¢ ()R B EER B R E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
the share options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November 2018
at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in issue shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number
of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each of Eligible Persons (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Where any further grant of
the share options to each of Eligible Persons would result in excess
of such limit shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at general meeting with each of such Eligible Persons and his
associates abstaining from voting.

No share option under Share Option Scheme was granted or
outstanding during the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

(@) Share capital

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27 BEERR#E
(a) K=&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEEREZBTRA
Number of
shares Amount
R EE S5
‘000 HK$’000
TFhx FHT
Authorised: SEIE
Ordinary shares Lima
At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021, 1 July ~ R=ZZE=_ZFF+F—H
2021 and 30 June 2022 of HK$0.01 —E-—FXA=FtH"
each —E-—FEA—HK
—E-_FAA=Z+THER
ME{E0.01787T 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
Ordinary shares LB
At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021, 1 July R-ZZE-_FEF+H—H -
2021 and 30 June 2022 of HK$0.01 —E-—FXA=+H"
each —E-FEA—HRK
TR ZHFAA=THER
HE{E0.0178 7T 540,000 5,400

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(M)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The amount represents the difference between the
nominal amount of shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under common control pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17
June 2018.

Contribution surplus

The amount represents the amounts due to shareholders
capitalised before the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

(b) EEZHERRAR

)

(ii)

(iii)

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022

BB

RIERSHE AN L2 QT
& ARAERMDEERNE
ARSI T ARARR - H
EEEZENKBRE AR K
NAIKEEBEAERERKBE
RE B EAETS

Attt

ZEBRRAREEHITRMOA
EELERESEFA QA RN
R-ZE-—=FRAttBEH
RAGEM Em METHEEE
AR U5 B K () 22 U BT B 2 ) O R
KRR FMZERR -

HAZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

27 EXRRHE(E)

(b) FEEZMEERRAR(E)

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2.21.

(v) The PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, PRC subsidiaries of the Group are
required to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit
but before dividend distribution to the statutory reserve
until the reserve has reached 50% of their registered
capital. The statutory reserve can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation for the year
ended 30 June 2022 amounted to HK$329,000 (2021:
HK$224,000).

(c) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net debt,
which include bank loans, bond and lease liabilities, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of a gearing
ratio. The ratio is expressed by as a percentage of total debts
over the total equity. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

(c)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27 EXKf#E(E)
Capital management (continued) (c) EXREE(E)
The gearing ratios at 30 June 2022 and 2021 are as follows: RZBZZFR-F-—F A=+
HoEELRAT -
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Total debts BS54 23,433 35,054
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIEE AEEER
Company 209,701 199,339
Gearing ratio LGRS 11.17% 17.59%

28

(d)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

At 30 June 2022, the aggregate amounts of reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company was HK$99,250,000
(2021: HK$101,602,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions that have sound credit
ratings.

0]

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 14% (2021: 15%) and
41% (2021: 36%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
usually due on presentation of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The directors have considered the credit risk of trade
receivables and noted that there was no actual loss nor
significant past due experience over the past 5 years,
including periods of unfavourable economic conditions.
The directors consider the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no loss allowance for credit losses were
recognised as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2R TE-4REREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB(E)

(i)  Trade receivables (continued) () EZEUZEE)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B S EBGRIA 2 BRI AITIAT -
2022 2021
—EC-_F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

0 - 30 days past due #HI0Z=30H 49,706

31 — 60 days past due #HAI31Z60H 13,777

61 — 90 days past due #HI61 290 H 4,757

Over 90 days past due 1 HAEE 00 A 2,153

70,393
(i) Loans and interest receivables (i) FEHREFHRFE

The Group considers the probability of default upon NEFBEZEEEBAERED

initial recognition of asset and whether there has been B RS HRERENE

a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis ERRELSRHEREEM-

throughout each reporting period. To assess whether L EERRETBEE N

there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group B NEBBEERRSH K

compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as BEENNRKREEXERB

at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default B R ETHE - R

as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available ERAESNEE MR

reasonable and supportive forward looking information. IEER  BFRIREA U TEE

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

-  internal credit rating; - ABEETR:

- external credit rating (as far as available); and INEMEERIR(E)

- actual or expected significant adverse changes — % BBRIAKERLE
in business, financial or economic conditions that PR el FE BR 3% 4 My & K7
are expected to cause a significant change to the B BHBEREFHE
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations. TEENENHEERE

g =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE 725117 )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
ECL model is as follows:

Category
=Wl

Definition of category

EHRIzER

28 ¢WMIACSRAREER QY

B (&)

(a) EEmRE(E)
(i) MEREFFRFIE (&)
AEEFEHREEBBRAKE
R R -

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BARBEEERRECEE

Stage 1

F =B

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.

BB RERLEEER jiﬂﬂ?@%i)]uﬂﬁ(\\
AR IR E ERER E R

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.
BERERALEEERBEZEN - ELE
HIREERERNRER -

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

e W EENMT RRR S REERK
THFEM—AxZREN - AABEAR

WEERHBREERE -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables are set out in note 15.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 22% and 67% (2021: 23% and 78%) of the
Group’s loans and interest receivables respectively as at

30 June 2022.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals

held,

if required. The Group does not provide any

guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

FEREARRT —EARNBLEEZDOEFOA
BEMEARRR K ATREIE ERE R -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
HRKATEEEE (AR S & EFIERE
H) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

HERKATEHIEE @ BB MR EE
BB 3H A A (T FERRE 4B 1B ) FE R B R R
STEFBWA -

ERAREREREREHE

it R RARGE— ST
WERRHI5 -
R-E-—#~A=+8 M

BREFARAAEBRAZE
o BIREAK A S B R E 3R &
FER22% M67T%(—ZF = —
& 1 28%K78%) °

BEERE EBREXRFEEZ
EERBAMBEER(NE
B)KIBPRK o ANEB I MIRH
FAHERAEREREER
REVFELR ©
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e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2R TE-4REREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB(E)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) i) EUREFRFE (&)
The Group rebutted the presumption of default under EREAREEFEETERS 2
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90 ERERAERTHERLY - K
days past due based on good repayment records for SECHFBABB0A V&
those loan borrowers having a continuous business with WEREFNBNBEHREEEE
the Group. They are assessed individually based on BXTBEH ZRKE - MBE
their probability of default and exposure of default with HEAOTgEREORE @ &
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by SERTEEBELS I
current and forward-looking factors. RERAEERZFREIED
ERIFTA o
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest ERER LT BB EEHm
receivables are as follows: ™
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-RE ERR E=E @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAT FHT
At 1 July 2020 “E-FF+H—H 59,023 46,046 - 105,069
New originated %ﬁéi 51,069 - - 51,069
Transfer R - (46,046) 46,046 -
Repaid during the year FAEE (30,735) - - (30,735)
Exchange realignment M R 665 - - 665
At30 June 2021 and 1 Juy RZTZ—FF=+H
2021 r=FE-_—%tA—H 80,022 - 46,046 126,068
New originated HEL 13,337 - - 13,337
Repaid during the year FREE (31,102) - - (31,102)
Exchange realignment b 5 (659) - - (659)
At 30 June 2022 RZZEZZFA=+H 61,598 - 46,046 107,644
By class at 30 June 2022 R=-E-—FxXH=+H
RERES
— Loans receivable —ERER 59,960 - 44,201 104,161
— Interest receivables —REWFE 1,638 - 1,845 3,483
61,598 - 46,046 107,644
By class at 30 June 2021 WH=—Z=-—FXH=+H
RERE S
- Loans receivable —ERER 79,217 - 44,201 123,418
— Interest receivables — JEUH B 805 = 1,845 2,650
80,022 - 46,046 126,068
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2T HE-S4REREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB:(E)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) (i) FEUREFRFE (&)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL HETEREEBERE  EE)
allowances is as follows: DT -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-REr  EoRR O E=RR @st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 July 2020 RZE-EF+A—H 392 36,997 - 37,389
New originated MEE 57 - - 57
Impairment loss recognised ERERAEEE 105 - - 105
Repaid during the year FAEE (66) - - (66)
Transfer R - (36,997 36,997 -
Impact on year ended ECLs of ~ FREMEE 2 MEE 2
exposures transferred between  ERYFERBHEEER
stages during the year pd-% - - - 9,049 9,049
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 R=T=—4FA=+H
k=ZF-——FtH—H 488 - 46,046 46,534
Impairment loss recognised ERERAERE 1,575 - - 1,575
Repaid during the year FANEER (26) - - (26)
At 30 June 2022 MN-E-_—FA=1H 2,037 - 46,046 48,083
By class at 30 June 2022 R-B-—HxXA=1+H
RERE S
— Loans receivable —ERER 2,005 - 44,201 46,206
— Interest receivables — NGRS 32 - 1,845 1,877
2,037 - 46,046 48,083
By class at 30 June 2021 R-B-—-EXA=1+H
RERE S
— Loans receivable —ERER 488 - 44,201 44,689
— Interest receivables — NGRS - - 1,845 1,845
488 - 46,046 46,534
No significant changes to estimation techniques or REEHA - WESR SR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. SBRBIEHEREE) -
A v i 168 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI17R)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(iiij) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, deposits and
other receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In
calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for
forward looking macroeconomic data.

At 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group has assessed
that the ECL rate for those receivables is immaterial
under 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised costs
was recognised.

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

28 ¢WMIACSRAREER QY
B (&)

(a) FERERE)

(iii) ZHBHEAL SRR ML HME
E
WEHR AR 2 2 BE
ERRRekReEEY R
[REVERITHER - e REME
WHKIH - AEEBEBRERE
HMEEBBRTREERETH
HEERR - R ERHEE
EiEXE  AEEZESER
WRRH) B EREE - A LA
B RBEEBUREL R -

R-E=-— —EZ—FX
A=+8 K&EEBEEBEZ121E
A TE BB 1805 6 32 55 FE RUR
WIEREEBEXRTEATE
K o B - 308 B IR S A AR
PRz Efh & & EEL M
ESiE R -

PR HIPY + 3 4 5 4 3 A
HBRIELEARD -

(b) REEZRER

AEEETENKEERAEELRY
ZREEE  BRASEKEHRE
EARENERRSFKONHEE
Ko AEEZHRBSERERERY
BEaHmR - UEREGF RN
R EHFGERERE  WENEER
RERSESHE °
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

28 TRITECEmMEAREER QT

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REEESRMK(E)

(c)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period):

TREGAAEE SR EBENREHR
ZHTEKHIHA - RALRIEAR
ERE(BEEAE QMR (WF
)RR MERRZBINERAE 2
FERF)EH :

2022 2001
EICE 5-F
Total Morethan  More than Totdl More than More than
contractual Within -~ fyearbut  2years but contractugl Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than Camying  undiscounted Tyearor less then Jess then More then
amount ~ cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years amount cashiow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years
aHREE 1B 1ENEE 2EMER AHRER 15RO 1FIEHE MR
BEE ReNEEE  9ER 2ENR SENR SENRL FEE BeNEZE  JEEX %R a0 5L
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T#n TEn TEn ThL ThL Tén TEn T T Thn Thn TET
Trade payables BHEATE 19,364 149 149 149 - - -
Fiencal lebiies ncudedn 3 AR EAEER
aconds, deposisreoeved  ZREHFEZSEAR
and other payeDles patvig 213 2213 213 - - -
Amountdue o adiector EH-285350 - 4 4 417t - - -
Bond % - 9938 1029 1029 - - -
Leasg fabiies il 2064 2119 2883 1420 1043 Y| -
Bark lans’ e 21,369 0 a4n 158 158 4645 1973
63,824 76420 82018 54626 2591 5065 1973

# The above information reflects the repayment schedules in
accordance with the relevant loan agreements. However, bank
loans are classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as they will be repaid upon
demand, according to the demand clause set out in the
loan agreements. As at 30 June 2022, the aggregated
contractual undiscounted cash flow on demand is amounted to
HK$21,499,000 (2021: HK$22,441,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from restricted
bank deposits, loans receivable, bank loans, bond and lease
liabilities. Deposits placed and borrowings issued at fixed rates
and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
below.
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(c)

o FRERNKMIBIEEBERBEZ
BN AW RTERRGREH
BRRERSEERBERE  ThER
HEREER HE 2 BEKRIIRE
KEE RN_TE-_—_FXA=+
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2 /421,499,0008 T (— T =—4F :
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

()

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits at the end of the reporting period:

B (&)

(c) FRREER(H)
) FIEHR

28 ¢WMIAECSRAREER QY

TRALAEENHEHRZ

TE R MR -

2022 2021
—B-C —F-
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRI ik
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
iR TAL
Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings) ERER/ ()
Restricted bank deposits SRABTER 0.01%-0.90% 570 0.01%-1.00% 1,710
Loans receivable EWEHR 6.00%-24.00% SREN  6.00%-24.00% 78,729
Bond E% 8.52% - 8.52% (9,938
Lease liabilities HEBE 5,00% (2,064) 5.00% (2,719
56,461 67,782
Variable rate deposits/(borrowings) FEHR/ (B3
Bank deposits and cash at bank RIRZRFTES 0.04% 74,480 0.02% 72,494
Bank loans BIER 2.36%-2.75% RN 2.36%-2.75% (22,397)
53,111 50,097
Net exposure ElRFE 109,572 117,879

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2022, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have no significant impact
to the Group’s profit after tax and accumulated losses.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and accumulated
losses assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk for at the end of the reporting period.
The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of the
next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2021.

(i)

BBEDHT
RZEBE-_—_FXA=+8" &
IR IEE EF T BB0MEE
BT EEMEETE - By
REBERBEZRF R RTEE
WEEBRTE -

EASRRE S TR AN R E R
BB R RFTHRZERE
B NEXVNXEHEIRHE
HRBLERERHERARAR
EftEAKEMBAMER
AERAFENREARNZES
BT R - SOfEEETT B IE & 2
B8 T — 845 E RS 5 RATH
AR E BB 7 -
—E_—FRAREEETD
i
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2RiTACSREAKREERAYF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E(&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥E
The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities REBERTHREEERBENS
were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (“RMB”). The TTRARB(ARE]DFHE - BRK
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant BoiEE WA~ BERFAZAEHE
foreign currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and EBoee S8t E  WERERR
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of the AEBITEATEREERE - A&
operations to which they relate. The Group currently does BIRRF I IMNE SRR o AT 0 B
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the BEgERINERR WKSZEER
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will FEREIRERINERER ©

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) EMIAEDE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHBT
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVPL A ETABGZEREE 34 -
Financial assets at amortised cost: REEK AR 2 SBEE ¢
— Trade receivables —E 5 ENFIE 82,864 70,393
- Deposits and other receivables — &S REMEWGIA 6,372 3,615
— Loans and interest receivables —EREZREF B 59,561 79,5634
— Restricted bank deposits —ZBRHIRITHER 570 1,710
- Cash and cash equivalents —BeMReEEY 74,480 72,494
223,847 227,746
223,881 227,746
Financial liabilities ==K
Financial liabilities measured at amortised IR E A EZ SR AE -
cost:
— Trade payables —E S ENHKIA 14,922
— Financial liabilities included in accruals, —&F AEETER « BEdUZE &
deposits received and other payables HtEfisE s emas 22,273
— Amount due to a director — B —REERE 4,171
- Bond —E% 9,938
- Bank loans —RITEX 22,397
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 2,719
76,420
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

(M)

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis shall be categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
value measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The listed equity securities are stated at their fair values
and are determined based on the quoted market closing
price available on the Stock Exchange at the end of the
reporting period, which is categorised as Level 1.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

28 ¢WMIACSRAREER QY

B (&)

(f)

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022

ATF{EM B

(M)

(i)

BAFENBEZELHTA
RFEER

AEBEBRAVEFEZEHT
AZBRHERRERRRER
WEEFE XN BREEEYH
BmEERIE135 A FEF
EIREZ=ZMATFEER -
NYEFEZEROBRTIZE
R ERMTRA e AR 2 7]
BERUEREZNE - BHEEAN
FEWMT ¢

- E-AKE:EERE—
RBABRBTENLF
B - BIRET 2 B R A
FAEEXABEREETS
H R ERE -

- BRMHE:ERE-R
B ABURET B R FE -
AR A BUR - HR
BEMERE —AMENR - B
NTBRERNTABEE
ABE - TAIBERE AR
BRYEMSEBIELE
ZEBABUE ©

- B=AMHE: EREKRT

TERH AR BN
i -

ETIERAFSFREAFET
R - MR RS B R B R BT
BHHRHE(DERE—R)
BT -

BEZZ-_—_FR-FT=-—F
NAZTHIEFEE  F—HH
Fo_RrETEER  RER
BB AREL -

HZERFESIRZEMTA

7N 5 (B 47 B 7R S B S B AR B BR
ZeMmITARmMESRER -
TTERZE-—E,A=1+
HZAFETESEAESR -
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EARBEAE RS KRR
AND BALANCES

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBFZEEABHFMEEDNAQT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in EE(MEF7FHEE) RaREEAER
note 7 and senior management, is as follows: I8 FHIET
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Directors =
Fees e 1,680
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e R REDRET 1,595
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 240
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FGRIRGT BRI AR
retirement plan 43
3,558
Senior management SREBEAS
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e EUMREYET 132
Discretionary bonuses EISTEAL 11
Contributions to defined contribution TERBMHFGRIRET ZIRIfER
retirement plan 7
150
3,708
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial MRZESmReUBEREAME DI HEES
statements, the Group did not have any material related party I AEERBE_T - —F R T —
transactions during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021. FRA=ZTHIEFREWEEAIERER S
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company’s HARAN 7 2 AR IR BR A I FE30() R U A A
statement of financial position in note 30(a) and in note 20. AIE AR 2R R MRE20 -
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30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 30 XAFHKEER
(a) Statement of financial position (a) MM RFT
2022 2021
B _F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB L& 8
Investments in subsidiaries REBARMIRE -
8
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e - ENRIEREMERFIE
receivables 301 286
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT /B A A1 RIE 165,056 169,990
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 165 844
165,522 171,120
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals e E R 647 1,127
Bond BEH - 9,938
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B R R 508 60,229 53,061
60,876 64,126
Net current assets REBEEFE 104,646 106,994
NET ASSETS EEFE 104,650 107,002
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital & 5,400 5,400
Reserves e 99,250 101,602
TOTAL EQUITY R 104,650 107,002
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30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 30 ZAATRBBER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Movements in components of equity (b) EETo2EH
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components RAFEARNG 2 (ER#emE05D &E)
of equity during the year are as follows: ZEHBEWT
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
[EN R EE I ER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEL FET FAT FiHT
(note 27(b)(i))
(M EE27(0)())
At 1 July 2020 R-ZE-ZE+A—H 5,400 198,524 (93,931) 109,993

Loss and total comprehensive  FREE & 2 EEBEE

loss for the year - - (2,991) (2,991)
At 30 June 2021 and R-ZEBEZ—-FXA=+HK
1 July 2021 —ZE-—-%+tA—H 5,400 108,524 (96,922) 107,002

Loss and total comprehensive  FREE & 2 EEBEE

loss for the year - - (2,352) (2,352)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE-Z&xA=1+H 5,400 198,524 (99,274) 104,650
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31 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

(a) Details of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2022 and

2021

31 BLARIZER

REBZZERZ-ZZFZ-FXA
=+ HMBERRAFE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.
2022
—EC-CE
Proportion of
effective ownership
interest
ERgAE
Place of Particulars of issued 5]
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct  Indirect
NRER BEMEE  ERORBERAE Ef 54
Incorporated in the BVI:
REREARRBEMAL
Silver Marker Limited HongKong  US$1
&R 17T
Bransfield Assets Limited HongKong  US$3 and HK$1,000,001
Bl 3%7TR1,000,001%7T
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REREMAL
Pollution & Protection HongKong  HK$18,557,800
Services Limited
ERBERBARAA Bl 18,557,800/ T
Profit Management Limited HongKong ~ HK$100
RAERERAR e 1007
PPS Success Limited HongKong  HK$10,000
EHEHERAT Bl 10,0007
Union Finance Limited HongKong  HK$10,000
ENEBERAR &R 10,0007
Incorporated in the PRC:
RREERARY :
Shanghai PPS Sheng Mao The PRC RMB10,000,000
Environmental Services Limited
(Note (i) .
tgﬁﬂﬁ%g&@ﬁ%ﬂmﬁ BAR A A 10,000,007
TE)
Shenzhen Environmental Cleaning ~ The PRC RMB10,600,000
\ Serviges Limited (Note (i) ‘
RIBRERZREERA R (L)) HE A&E10,600,0007C

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity

joint ventures.

(i) The subsidiary is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned

enterprises.

(a)

TREHFAETE

FEAEEXE &

EXRBENNBRRZHE - BRE

FERISh - R VR R AR -
2021
—E--F
Proportion of
effective ownership
interest
EREAR
1tk
Direct  Indirect Principal activity
Bk iz TEEK
100% - Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Investment holding
RERR
- 100% Provision of environmental
and cleaning services
RERERE 2R
- 100% Provision of money lending
services
RAHERS
- 100% Trading of securities and
property holding
BEESRSANZ
- 100%  Provision of money lending
services
RAHE RS
= 51%  Provision of environmental
and cleaning services
IR RRRRE
= 100% Provision of money lending
services
BRfL R EARAS
B3

0] ZMB AR TIARINEBRLEDHE
A ER -

(i) ZMIBRRIIAINEIEE b2

HER ©

EEHERBRAR Gk 2022
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31 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 31 MEARIZER (&)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEHBATE]

On 6 October 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity RZE-ZTF+ANE » XEEREE
interests in China Chi Lik Limited (“China Chi Lik”) and NE=ZFTERDHEFREBNER
China Manufacturer Gate Limited (“Manufacturer Gate”) RERI(HEEAN]) RFEEFIERA
to independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) for total B[P D 2 230 - BRED T
considerations of HK$1 and HK$1 respectively. BIBTRIBTT

The liabilities of these subsidiaries disposed at completion date ZEEHERBRARNTEXNEH &
comprise of: BEBE

China Manufacturer

Chi Lik Gate Total
REZR D ile! st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Other payables HubhpER A (11) (1) (22)
Net liabilities disposed of HESEFEE (11) (11) (22)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H&EK B A 72 W
Cash consideration HeRE = = -
Net liabilities disposed of HEAEFE 11 11 22
11 1 22
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEHB AT ZEE
subsidiaries RAFE
Cash consideration received BUIRERE — = -
The cash consideration was HK$1. * BERERBIABTT -
, q Vﬁ\\ 178 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Performance bonds

Guarantees on performance bonds
in respect of environmental service
contracts

FLRIRIRTS A KB AR M HER

32 HAREE
(a) BHREF
2022 2021
—Eo—fF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
13,644

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental
service contracts. The bank facilities of HK$14,320,000
(2021: HK$13,644,000) granted to the Group and bankers’
guarantees on performance bonds issued were pledged by:

() land and buildings of HK$53,700,000 (2021:
HK$49,900,000);

(i) restricted bank deposits of HK$570,000 (2021:
HK$1,710,000); and

(i) corporate guarantees of the Company and PPS Success
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the
service period and the contract terms as specified in these
environmental service contracts. The performance bonds may
be claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group
fail to meet the standards as specified in these environmental
service contracts.

Litigations - Injury compensations

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigations concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have any
significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations.
All potential claims made by these employees and third party
claimants not covered by insurance have been accounted for
in the balance of “provision for claims” under accruals, deposits
received and other payables (see note 19) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(b)

EEHERBRAR  Fik 2022

REEREZBEITE TRERBELD
EEHMNBARBIRMRITER - %
TARKERIRITRIE 14,320,000/ 7T
(ZZ——% : 13,644,000/87T) M2
BHELNRFEZRITERATYSE
TEHAR -

() b K& F53,700,000/8 5T ( =
£~ —4F : 49,900,000 7T) :

(i) =2 BR ® R 1717 5X570,000/%8 T
(ZZ = — 4 : 1,710,000
) &

(i) AATREEMNE QR EEEE
HEERAAIZARIER -

FE AR E 2 B RERR TR AR 7% A K%
HETRERBANTANGHOIM
E o MARERHNIREREEEZ
ERFRBAWTANGRE AP
A ERRBHIRE

AR — S EREE

REBEEZZE - —FR-_FT-—F,XA
=THIEFE  ANEEAETREY
ABHHEEXF=FERAELEH
BAZISHHRR  c EERE » ANEH
W B Z SRR EEE(IERKA
BF - ZSEENREZFHRARYE
R B B R R AZRBAR - I
EARGAMBRARENER B
Wik & & H Ath FE S ZOE (R KT FE19)
R REBE | 265 -
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33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 33 =EEHAET R A

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value of these cash
flows. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note
12.

(b) Loss allowances on financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the previous estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed.
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fAEt RAE S RHEETHE - LABEL
BREMAR(BRERLERL N ARE
EHARIBTEG) BIKE -

EEHGEMBRERE  FEERIES
ATERERRER  FESHERREREEN
¥U%ﬁ&ﬁ1ﬁﬁ?ﬁ§ml% PGIEL S

BERHGXBEARBREDTE - T8
Eﬁfﬂlﬁﬁ%@i’\WEZ AREEME - THE
BERTHE L RERERE M MRER
AR R 2T R -

(a) EERERR

EEEmESTRER - BEHESIRY
BRSELBMN 2 FREBEBEEL MG
it e st EEREER - EFAMTE
Hﬂ/ﬁ@ﬁi?iﬁ{izikxiﬁimu&
AWRE - UstEZEHEeRCR
TE B R L R EE M2 o

(b) BREERATENEREESE
BHE
AEBEEFERREEERGENE
5 N EL A W SR TR A e FE MK 35k e )
B2 ERRE - ERBEMMGE LA
b - BREEERIDERAKEZ B
HEEEBRLR  RRHEHREE
W YNSHWASE I E I RIPS VLS
ROBEARZ FHEETTAE - WihatA
AIRERIE  BRERBTEES
Ko EL At MR IR DA K W& 0 K M) B,
ZBRHE - EMTEERMtEHEH
B2 BEREE
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33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 33 £iH{&st R HIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Income taxes (c) FriE®i

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of transactions is assessed periodically to the effect
of all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deduction differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.

Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

ETMEHEABIREETRHZR
AR SRR R A e R
HAE - NEBBEF GRS 2B
FE UHEFENERE X5
Wi EaIE 7 A\ E MIsLT A s A DI 2
B EEITIE -

BIEIR B E T AR B RTIARE R X
EEMEREER o RN FIELER
THEEE R R RE B R A FIAHE
RARBAHAEEREHE BN T
R MEEERFHE R R ERTH AT
Z R REMER R A FI T o

BEEE SRR - HARAR
PR PR RR A g B IR ST R IR B 7 AR
B - BEREEINEERAEE -
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2022

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 30 June 2022 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These amendments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements Project

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before intended use’

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020"

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations'

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34 BZ_-_ZT__—_FXA=1+HLHF

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED ECEMEE RER BT -
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED FETERRREBUREEAZY
30 JUNE 2022 (CONTINUED) (&)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what REE EEF G B R AT &R ER A
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period TEHEACHE 25 AEERE - K
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of MZ ST AR EA T e A& E
them will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated RrE SR REEERTE -

financial statements.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEHBRE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B T ZT-FTF —FT-NF —T)N\F
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FiBT FiBT FET FiBT

RESULTS E o
Revenue & 370,336 354,775 345,386 316,086 319,851
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmHM,(EB) 10,913 20,680 (35,817) 19,453 8,177
Attributable to: AT AL -
Owners of the Company KREMER A 10,677 19,192 (36,719 18,477 (8,289)
Non-controlling interests IR 236 1,488 902 976 112
10,913 20,680 (35,817) 19,453 6,177
Dividends paid B E - - - -

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets MEE 291,768 294,359 265,361 280,424 319,612
Total liabilities FEN=R (78,430) (91,619) (85,166) (64,094)  (169,179)

Net assets BEFE 213,338 202,740 180,195 216,330 150,433
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